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ABOUT
PORT ALBERNI

At the heart of the west coast, where the forest meets the seq, is
the vibrant waterfront community of Port Alberni. Surrounded by
glacial peaks and nestled along a 48-kilometre saltwater inlet
that opens to the Pacific Ocean, Port Alberni offers residents the
best of West Coast living in a setting that is both breathtaking
and accessible.

Home to nearly 20,000 people, Port Alberni is located within the
traditional unceded territories of the Tseshaht and Hupacasath
First Nations. These relationships are foundational to the City's
identity, and reconciliation remains a central part of our planning
and decision-making.
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Here, nature is at your doorstep, and’community is just around
the corner. Whether you're drawn by the ocean, the mountains, or
the promise of a close-knit and growing city, Port Alberni is ready
for you.









ABOUT YOUR
LOCAL GOVERNMENT

The City of Port Alberni is committed to providing local services,
facilities, safety and infrastructure for the community.

Through a sensible approach to local government, the city
recognizes the need to balance social, environmental, economic
and cultural perspectives in all aspects of its services.

The city also places special emphasis on
‘sustainability’, ensuring that the needs of today’s
citizens are met while also planning strategically for
the needs of future generations.

The City of Port Alberni is made up of eight internal
departments and one external department, the
RCMP, and employs over 290 people. Of that,
approximately 165 are full-time positions with the
remainder being either part-time or auxiliary. These
employees are dedicated to serving the public by
helping manage city-led programs and operating
city-owned facilities.

Each department reports to the Chief Administrative
Officer (CAO) who undertakes the management and
administration of city operations.

The CAO of the city is appointed by, and reports to,
City Council. In leading the senior management
team, the CAO sets the overall direction to ensure
achievement of Council’s Strategic Plan.

A critical responsibility for the CAO is to ensure
all operations are conducted not only within the
framework of the city’s values and goals but
within legal legislative requirements.




CITY

The City of Port Alberni maintains a complete program of
essential services and manages a number of public facilities
that bring life and energy to the community.

These facilities are:
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City Hall
4850 Argyle Street

Public Works and Parks Yard
4150 6" Avenue

Public Safety Building
3075 3 Avenue

Port Alberni Train Station
3100 Kingsway Avenue

Bob Dailey Stadium and
Track
4480 Vimy Street

O O O O O

Echo Aquatic Centre
4255 Wallace Street

Echo ‘67 Community Centre
4255 Wallace Street

Alberni Valley Multiplex
3737 Roger Street

Glenwood Recreation Centre
4480 Vimy Street

Echo Park Field House
4200 Wood Avenue

OO O O O

Gyro Youth Centre
3245 7t Avenue

Alberni Valley Museum
4255 Wallace Street

McLean Mill National
Historic Site
5633 Smith Road

Planning, Engineering
and Building Office
Upper - 4835 Argyle Street




MESSAGE FROM
YOUR MAYOR
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This report serves as a valuable tool

to communicate the City’s priorities,
accomplishments and plans and our continued
commitment to serving our community. On

the unceded territories of the Tseshaht and
Hupacasath First Nations, whose lands we
honour and appreciate, | am pleased to present
the City of Port Alberni’s 2024 Annual Report.

This past year has been one of momentum and
renewal. As a city, we've embraced change while
staying grounded in the values that make Port
Alberni a unique and welcoming place. Guided
by our 2023 - 2027 Corporate Strategic Plan, we
continue to invest in infrastructure, enhance
liveability and build a resilient, inclusive economy
that supports our community’s well-being.

Port Alberni is growing, with new residents arriving
every day. They're coming for our affordability,
natural beauty and strong sense of community.
From young families starting out to retirees
seeking quality of life, people are choosing Port
Alberni as a place to build their lives, and we are
making sure the city is ready to meet that growth
with smart planning and bold ideas.

In 2024, we began foundational work on several
master plans, including the Fire Master Plan and
the first phase of engagement for the Parks,
Recreation and Culture Master Plan. These efforts
reflect our commitment to long-term planning
that responds to the evolving needs of residents
and businesses. We also celebrated the grand
opening of the Quay to Quay Pathway—a four-
kilometre multi-modal pathway that connects
Harbour Quay and Victoria Quay. This project is
a symbol of our broader vision: creating public
spaces that bring people together and connects



them to our waterfront. Already, this new amenity
is transforming how people experience our
community and its many natural assets.

The year also marked one of the most
transformative opportunities in a generation—
the redevelopment of the Somass Lands. In 2024
the City made major strides in site remediation,
supported by grant funding, as we prepared to
turn this pivotal piece of land over to the selected
developer, Matthews West Developments Ltd., a
Canadian company based in Squamish, B.C. These
efforts are setting the stage for transformational
redevelopment that will support housing,
economic activity and public access to the
waterfront.

This project is part of a broader shift toward
economic diversification. As we move away from
reliance on a single industry, we are actively
fostering a modern, sustainable economy
grounded in innovation and opportunity. We're
advancing the blue economy, growing our tourism
presence, and reimagining the future of forestry as
key drivers of long-term prosperity.

Our government-to-government partnership
with the Tseshaht and Hupacasath First Nations
continues to grow. In 2024 the City joined both
Nations through the Community Economic
Development Initiative (CEDI) to envision a new
future for Clutesi Haven Marina. This bold, shared
vision includes space for small businesses, food
trucks, live music and more—ensuring the site
reflects the cultural and economic interests of all
our communities.

Tourism is also playing a growing role in our city’s
future. By investing in parks, trails, culture and the
arts, we're creating experiences that attract visitors
and enrich the lives of residents. The continued
development of our waterfront—guided by public
input and strong partnerships—is central to this
work.

CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

While we celebrated many accomplishments, we
also paused to honour the memory of Councillor
and former Mayor John Douglas, whose deep

love for this community shaped his public service.
His vision for a thriving, connected Port Alberni
continues to inspire our work, and his legacy lives
on in our commitment to social planning, inclusive
housing and a reimagining the waterfront for
everyone to enjoy.

As we look ahead, Port Alberni continues to move
forward with purpose. Council remains focused
on building a livable, connected and resilient
community—one that honours its past and
embraces a bold, sustainable future.

As we look to 2025 City Council wants to thank
you for your interest in our municipal operations
and for choosing Port Alberni as the place you call
home.

Sincerely,

Sharie Minions,
Mayor

L



STRATEGIC HIGHLIGHTS
FROM YOURCAO
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Reflecting on 2024 and Building a Bold Future

As we reflect on 2024 and look ahead to the
opportunities of 2025, | am proud of the progress
we have made and the direction we are heading
as a community. This past year, the City of Port
Alberni focused on strengthening infrastructure,
enhancing recreational spaces and responding to
housing challenges, all while meeting increased
demands on our services.

Laying the Foundation for Transformation

One of the most significant milestones of 2024
was the advancement of the Somass Lands. In
partnership with Matthews West Developments
Ltd., this 43-acre waterfront redevelopment
represents a once-in-a-generation opportunity
to reimagine a key part of our waterfront. It marks
the beginning of an exciting new chapter in our
city’s story.

Connecting Our Community

This year, we also made important strides

in improving our community’s connectivity

and quality of life. The Roger Creek Trail and

Quay to Quay Pathway expansions are not

only recreational assets—they are essential
connections that promote healthy, sustainable
lifestyles and invite residents and visitors to
explore the natural beauty that defines our region.



CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

Responding to Growing Demands

As our population grows, so too do the expectations placed on municipal services. Across all departments,
we continue to face increased pressures, but our commitment remains clear: to deliver effective, responsive
programs. Our partnership with BC Housing has been instrumental in addressing the urgent need for more
affordable housing, and we are embracing creative solutions to expand access and affordability.

Collaborative Solutions to Complex Issues

In 2024, we launched the Situation Table, a new initiative that brings together community partners to address
intersecting social issues—such as homelessness, mental health and addiction—more collaboratively and
compassionately. At the same time, our Nuisance Abatement Working Group took steps to improve public
safety by addressing vacant and derelict buildings, with more work scheduled for 2025.

Investing in an Inclusive Future

Our Community Economic Development Initiative (CEDI) stands as a testament to inclusive, community-first
planning. With a focus on building strong partnerships—particularly with local First Nations—this initiative

will see increased vendor spaces at Clutesi Haven Maring, both for food and retail, and provides the three
governments the opportunity to strengthen their inter-community relationships, and to build capacity for joint
planning and community economic development.

Planning for Sustainability and Growth

This year also saw the first steps in the development of a comprehensive suite of master plans to guide

our growth and resilience. These strategic documents, together with our ongoing work on the Official
Community Plan (ocP), will ensure that Port Alberni's future is balanced, sustainable and responsive to both
environmental and community needs.

Looking Ahead: Strategic, Responsible Growth

Our 2025 budget planning process focused on strategic investments that put our community’s needs first—
whether in housing, infrastructure, parks or core services—while upholding our responsibility to manage public
funds wisely.

Together, Toward a Thriving Future

We are entering a pivotal time in Port Alberni’s history. Our momentum is strong, our partnerships are growing,
and our shared vision for the future is clearer than ever. Together, we will continue to build a strong, inclusive
and thriving community for generations to come.

Respectfully,

Mike Fox (he/him)

Chief Administrative Officer, City of Port Alberni
13



CITY COUNCIL

The City is governed by a Council of seven who are
responsible for municipal leadership and decision-making.
Council establishes policies and sets priorities to ensure
their decisions consider the interests and well-being of the
community and that of the land we live on.

In 2024, the community lost Councillor John Douglas all to
soon (1953 - 2024). His seat sat vacant until December when
a by-election was held with Tom Verbrugge voted in as the
successful candidate to complete the term.

14
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From left to right: Dustin Dame — Councillor, Charles Mealey - Councillor, Debbie Haggard — Councillor,
Sharie Minions — Mayor, Cindy Solda - Councillor, John Douglas — Councillor, Todd Patola — Councillor

From left to right: Dustin Dame — Councillor, Todd Patola — Councillor, Debbie Haggard — Councillor,
Sharie Minions — Mayor, Cindy Solda - Councillor, Tom Verbrugge — Charles Mealey — Councillor,
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OUR

CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

MISSION & VISION

Port Alberni is a vibrant waterfront community at the heart
of Vancouver Island that recognizes the waterfront as its
greatest natural asset and works to ensure it integrates
residents, tourists, arts, culture, industry and innovation.

MISSION:

PROVIDING OR FACILITATING THE
DELIVERY OF HIGH-QUALITY CORE
MUNICIPAL SERVICES AND PROGRAMS

The City is committed to ensuring that city
taxpayers receive high-quality services and
the best value from service providers.

REBALANCING ENVIRONMENTAL,
ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL BENEFITS

The City strives to make continuous
improvements in prioritizing new, emerging,
sustainable economic sectors, reducing
waste and ensuring city infrastructure is
renewed in an environmentally sustainable
manner.

FISCALLY RESPONSIBLE

The City is committed to being fiscally
responsible and to creating a climate
for investment and involvement by its
citizens.

PLANNING AND ENCOURAGING
DEVELOPMENT TO ENSURE A THRIVING
ECONOMY AND STRONG DIVERSE

TAX BASE

The City continues to seek the highest

and best use of our land by making
improvements and attracting investment.

PROVIDING LEADERSHIP AND BUILDING
PARTNERSHIPS (INTERNAL/EXTERNAL),
WHICH WILL BE OF BENEFIT TO THE
ALBERNI VALLEY.

We are committed to strengthening our
vital relationships with First Nations, regional
governments, and local partners to ensure
that they remain integral to our planning
and decision-making processes in the
years to come.

17



STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

The 2023-2027 Corporate Strategic Plan outlines five strategic priorities which represent the
framework for achieving its vision of being a vibrant waterfront community and builds on the
goals and priorities from the last five-year plan.

Each year the City undergoes a budget process that helps align the City’s priorities with its
municipal projects and spending. The priorities, coupled with the mission, bridge where the
City has been and where it wants to go. It sets out a clear sense of purpose for its staff and
citizens through a number of goals and strategies.

This includes projects that grow our economy, connect us to nature, encourage an active
lifestyles and ensure a sustainable future.

We believe that by achieving exceptional day-to-day service delivery and the objectives laid
out in the Strategic Plan, we can continue to grow what is already an incredible place to call
home.




CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

2023-2027 Strategic Plan Goals and Strategies include:

RESPONDING TO ENABLING THE NEW

DEMOGRAPHIC CHANGE ECONOMY

 The City continues on a thoughtful - The tourism/visitor sector of local
and sustainable path of economy flourishes.

reconciliation with First Nations

and First Nation citizens. * The economy grows with an

emphasis on small business.
« Be a community that is connected
by safe, walkable, green streets,
and accessible multi-modal
pathways.

« The Community has a strategy that
effectively encourages investment
and sustainable growth.

 The City takes an active and
innovative role in the redevelopment
of Brownfields.

« Highest and best use of the
waterfront for active lifestyles.

« The City adapts in response to
ongoing demographic change
and community development.
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 The highest and best use is made
of City owned assets.

» The City’s citizens receive the best
value from its service providers.

« The City provides quality services
to residents.

» Continuous improvements are made
in terms of reducing the amount of
solid waste generated within the City
that is landfilled.

« City infrastructure is renewed in a
sustainable and environmentally-
conscious manner.

« Brownfield sites in the community are
remediated in a timely manner.

+ Building sustainable environmental
economic sectors.



POoRT ALBERN

« The community is aesthetically « Members of the community have
appealing and there are locally access to safe and secure sources of
authentic public spaces. Citizens are food.

proud of their community.

« Safe and accessible housing options
exist for all members of the community.

« The community is connected with safe
pathways and trails that are muilti-
modal. Pedestrians and cyclists are safe
and feel welcome.

» People are safe and feel safe.

2]



COMMITTEES,
COMMISSIONS &
BOARDS

COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS & BOARDS

Advisory Planning Commission

Alberni Clayoquot Regional District Board

Alberni Valley Heritage Commission

22



CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS & BOARDS

Audit Committee

Board of Variance

Community Investment Program

Court of Revision

Personnel Committee

Traffic Advisory Committee

23






CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

PORT ALBERNI
AT A GLANCE

POPULATION
19,685

w w w " INGRANTS AND
" TRANSFER FUNDING

THE VALUE OF
MORE THAN CONSTRUCTION
BUILDING INCREASED FROM

PERMITS
ISSUED IN 2023 TO OVER m
IN 2024

& 2D ol
OF ORGANIC N = A BV AW g

WASTE FIRE DEPARTMENT RESPONDED TO
DIVERTED FROM SERVICE

ks ol CALLS FOR SERVICE Gl

MORE THAN GALLONS YOUTH
OF HIGH-QUALITY DRINKING WATER N BEGREATION
PROVIDED. THAT'S ENOUGH TO FILL PROGRAMS &

ECHO POOL OVER TIMES! CAMPS

*SOURCE: STATISTICS CANADA, ANNUAL POPULATION ESTIMATES - JULY 2024




CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

THE COMMUNITY

MAYOR & COUNCIL .................

..................

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENTS & OPERATIONS

INFRASTRUCTURE CORPORATE FIRE CHIEF
SERVICES DEPARTMENT SERVICES
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
OPERATIONS > DEPUTY DIRECTOR > DEPUTY
MANAGER FIRE CHIEF
> COMMUNICATIONS
> ROADS & DRAINAGE MANAGER

SUPERINTENDENT
COMMUNITY SAFETY AND SOCIAL
DEVELOPMENT

> UTILITIES
SUPERINTENDENT MANAGER

» COMMUNITY POLICING
> FLEET & SOLID WASTE MANAGER
SUPERINTENDENT

PROJECT
MANAGER
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CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

[i]

The City of Port Alberni is
dedicated to building a
workforce that is qualified,
motivated and delivers
high-quality programs

and services to the
, RCMP OFFICER IN CHARGE residents and taxpayers of
INSPECTOR Port Alberni.

................................... » EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT Shown here is the high-
level organizational chart

outlining the nine internal
departments and one
external department that
make up the City of

Port Alberni.

FINANCE DEVELOPMENT SERVICES PARKS, RECREATION
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR/DEPUTY CAO & CULTURE

DIRECTOR
> DEPUTY > PLANNING

DIRECTOR MANAGER > RECREATION SERVICES
MANAGER

> FACILITIES
> INFORMATION SERVICES MANAGER
MANAGER

" PARKS
MANAGER

” CULTURE
MANAGER

ECONOMIC HUMAN RESOURCES

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

MANAGER » HUMAN RESOURCES
SAFETY ADVISOR

» POLICE SUPPORT SERVICES
MANAGER

27
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RESTRIC'I’ED -WA \NC ONLY -

YOUR
RCMP DEPARTMENT

The Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) is Canada’s
national police service and is contracted by the City to
provide policing in Port Alberni. Proud of their traditions and
confident in meeting future challenges, they are committed
to preserving the peace, upholding the law and providing a
quality of service in partnership with the community.

30



WE DELIVER FOR YOU

The RCMP actively support the
community through a range of
initiatives aimed at enhancing
safety and fostering engagement.

In 2024, the Port Alberni RCMP saw
a five per cent decrease in the
number of calls compared to the
previous year. The total calls for
service went from 11,447 in 2023

to 10,891in 2024. While total calls
dropped slightly, the overall crime
rate increased by just over five
per cent.

To respond effectively to these
demands, the Port Alberni
detachment continues to operate
with a full team of frontline and
plainclothes officers, supported
by a dedicated group of 21
municipal staff.

The RCMP continues to focus

on crime reduction and the
investigation of serious crimes.
The Crime Reduction Unit, made
up of three officers, remains
focused on targeting the most
prolific and repeat offenders.

The Crime Reduction Unit also
partners with multiple provincially
based resources who add
additional layers of support when
dealing with violent offenders.
While a relatively small segment
of the criminal population,

these offenders are responsible
for a large number of crimes
committed within Port Alberni
and surrounding area.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

The Port Alberni RCMP continue
to serve our community with
dedication and courage.

In 2024 the RCMP celebrated a
major milestone—50 years of
women in uniform helping shape
the organization into a more
inclusive and modern one.

Here in Port Alberni, we are proud
to have nine femalle officers
serving our community.

In the prior year, the City
developed a corporate structure
that encompasses bylaw
services, community policing and
police support services. Now in
its second year, this collaborative
approach to community safety
between the City of Port Alberni
and the RCMP continues to

be refined and better defined

in an effort to build a strong
multidisciplinary team that can
manage existing and emerging
public safety issues.

FAST FACTS

+ 10,891 municipal calls for service
« Five per cent drop in total calls

« Five per cent increase in overall
crime rate

+ 21 municipal employees
supporting operations

« Nine female officers currently
serving

INTO THE FUTURE

In 2025, the RCMP’s priorities
will centre around four key
areas that reflect both the
evolving needs of Port Alberni
and the detachment’s ongoing
commitment to public safety.

pr

These areas include:

1. Aboriginal Policing & Indigenous
Communities

Enhancing visibility, prevention
and engagement with First
Nations communities—especially
youth—through events, outreach
and partnerships.

2. Employee Wellness

Promoting the health and
resilience of all RCMP staff by
connecting them with supports
and resources.

3. Service to Vulnerable Groups

Balancing enforcement with
collaboration to reduce harm and
improve outcomes for those most
at risk.

4. Family Violence Prevention

Supporting victims through
education, outreach and
wraparound community services.

The RCMP and the City of Port
Alberni will continue to work
closely to address complex public
safety challenges.

With a focus on community
safety, public engagement,
mental health response, and
prevention, we are building

a more coordinated and
compassionate policing model—
one that supports the well-being
of everyone in our community.
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YOUR DEVELOPMENT
SERVICES
DEPARTMENT

Your Development Services department is an active
catalyst in shaping a complete, balanced, and liveable
community, achieved through ongoing engagement
and collaboration with community partner organizations
and residents. Working together, we aim to foster a
comprehensive and sustainable environment for all.
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WE DELIVER FOR YOU

A central aspect of the
Development Services
department involves preparing
regulatory strategies for City-
wide planning, serving as a
guide for balanced growth and
transformation of the City.

The department also plays a

key role in managing zoning

and subdivision applications

to promote the City’s effective
land use and community
development. Additionally, the
department oversees the process
of issuing building permits and
conducting inspections, ensuring
construction projects meet

the City’'s safety and quality
standards.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

Providing access to a range of
housing, including affordable
and accessible housing, is a
major priority in the City of Port
Alberni and throughout the
Province.

Several housing projects have
proceeded in the City of Port
Alberni, including:

« Citaapi Mahtii Housing Society
- a 35-unit affordable housing
project.

* VRS Communities Society- a
102 unit five-storey senior
housing project.

+ Oomiigsu Mothering Centre
- a 16 unit multi-family and
childcare facility.

 Inquiring Little Minds -a new
88 space childcare centre on
8th Avenue, connected to the
existing City-owned building.

In 2024 the City received grant
funding from the Province

for a Complete Communities
Assessment. This work involved
the completion of a geo-spatial
analysis and the preparation of

detailed mapping. This project
was completed at the end

of 2024 and will help inform
potential actions for municipal
master plans, the Official
Community Plan (OCP) and
other bylaws.

The City continued work on a
new OCP with a summary of

the key engagement outcomes
documented in a “What We Heard"
report.

Work on policy development
to address the key topics and
integrate community ideas
continues as staff prepare a
draft OCP document for review
in 2025.

Further, the City completed an
Interim Housing Needs Report and
changes to enable new small-
scale multi unit housing as

required by Provincial legislation.

FAST FACTS

« 153 Building Permits were issued
in 2024, including 86 new
residential dwelling units.

« The value of construction
increased from $23 million in
2023 to over $45 million in 2024.

 The City issued over 1200
Business Licences in 2024.

AWARDS/GRANTS

The City of Port Alberni received
$5 million in grant funding
under the Childcare BC New
Spaces Fund and Union of

BC Municipalities (UBCM) to
construct the new 88 space
childcare centre on 8th Avenue.
The space is now operational
serving families throughout the
community.

The construction of the new
childcare centre was completed
in August of 2024, with the
operator, Inquiring Little Minds
opening in September of 2024.

CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

INTO THE FUTURE

In 2025, the City of Port Alberni will
continue the work to adopt a new
Official Community Plan Bylaw.

The City is working on policy
development to address the key
topics and integrate community
ideas where appropriate to
prepare a draft OCP document.
Further engagement with City
Council, First Nations and the
community will occur through
the OCP process, with a required
formal public hearing before final
adoption of a new OCP bylaw in
2025.

A new OCP will assist the City of
Port Alberni in identifying and
directing the long-term vision of
the community. The new OCP will
provide objectives and policies
for housing needs and a wide
range of other issues that will help
guide decisions on a variety of
municipal priorities.

Through these projects and

with the guidance of the 2023

- 2027 Corporate Strategic Plan,

your Development Services
department will help shape the
future of Port Alberni and continue
to transform the city into a vibrant
waterfront community.

153 Py
BUILDING PERMITS

ISSUED IN 2024, ;m ﬁ

95%
INCREASE IN
CONSTRUCTION
VALUE OVER
2023.
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The Port Alberni Fire Department is committed to the health
and well-being of its staff and the community, and aims

to enhance awareness through education and public
participation while providing premier fire and rescue
services.

34



WE DELIVER FOR YOU

The Port Alberni Fire Department
(PAFD) delivers a wide range of
emergency services to protect
our community. In addition to
fire suppression, firefighters
respond to medical calls, vehicle
crashes, technical rescues,

and fire investigations. The
department also leads important
public education and prevention
programs.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

This past year proved to be
another busy year for the
department.

In 2024, the PAFD responded to
2,759 calls for service, making
it the second busiest year on
record.

Structure fires increased slightly
to 46, and were knocked down
with help from the department’s
automatic aid partners across
the Alberni Valley. Motor vehicle
incidents rose by four per cent
keeping crews busy on local
roads, and the wildfire season
began in April, with coordinated
suppression efforts by the PAFD
firefighters, local volunteer fire
departments and BC Wildfire
crews.

The PAFD also partnered with the
Office of the Fire Commissioner
of BC in 2024 to launch FireSafe,
a home fire safety program.
Firefighters visited more than 500

homes in high-risk areas, offering:

« Fire safety education
« Smoke alarm checks
» Free smoke alarm installations

This door-to-door campaign
was well received by the
community and made a direct
impact on home safety.

The department also continued
to promote the VoyentAlert app.

This region-wide emergency
notification system will alert
registrants when a local
emergency/disaster strikes.
Help keep your family safe by
downloading the app today!

w VOYENTALERT!

REGISTERNOW?!

Hazmat Leak Near Your Home
EVACUATE IMMEDIATELY

acrd.bc.ca [voyentalert
FAST FACTS

« 2,759 total calls for service
» 46 structure fires

+ 500+ homes visited through
FireSafe

* 4% rise in vehicle crash
responses

INTO THE FUTURE

The PAFD remains committed to
protecting lives, property, and
the environment—through rapid
response, community outreach,
and a strong culture of safety.

In 2025, the department will focus
on:

« The FireSafe program with
support from the Office of
the Fire Commissioner. This
will allow PAFD to reach more
homes across the city, as well
as Tseshaht and Hupacasath
First Nations.

« Transitioning to Next-
Generation 911, a modernized
version of the traditional 911
emergency response system
that allows people to contact
emergency services using
more than just voice calls.

« Updating the Automatic Aid
Agreement between Alberni
Valley fire departments to
reflect current practices.

RESPONDED TO
2,759 INCIDENTS

DOWN 2%
FROM 2023
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YOUR PARKS,
RECREATION AND
CULTURE DEPARTMENT

Your Parks, Recreation and Culture department enriches the
lives of those they serve by ensuring full and equitable access
to a wide range of leisure opportunities, and promoting an
appreciation for the environment and cultural history.




WE DELIVER FOR YOU

Your Parks, Recreation and
Culture department holds a
crucial role in the shaping and
preservation of Port Alberni’s
public spaces and cultural
history. We are entrusted with the
development, maintenance, and
operation of the City’s facilities,
parks and public spaces. This
responsibility is carried out with
a deep understanding of the
importance of these venues in
enhancing community well-
being and fostering connections
among residents.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

CULTURE

In 2024, the Alberni Valley Museum
hosted two major exhibits:

* The Ones We Met: Inuit
Traditional Knowledge and the
Franklin Expedition
(Feb. 8—-May 11), developed
by the Canadian Museum of
History in partnership with the
Inuit Heritage Trust. This event
highlighted the critical role
of Inuit Qaujimajatugangit in
guiding the discovery of HMS
Erebus and HMS Terror.

e All That Moves Us
(June 6-Aug. 31), a juried
exhibition organized by the
Alberni Art Rave Society,
featured 49 artists from
coastal B.C. and offered an
interactive and diverse display
of artwork exploring movement
in all its forms.

These exhibitions underscore

the museum’s commitment

to inclusive storytelling and
community engagement through
arts and culture.

FACILITIES

Several key infrastructure projects
were completed or advanced in
2024:

« Train Station Water Tower:
Structural repairs included
drainage improvements,
tension cables, column
replacement and
waterproofing to protect this
important heritage landmark.

« Works Yard Roof Replacement:
The aged roof was upgraded
with a high-performance
system to improve drainage
and durability, with weather-
related delays pushing final
completion to early 2025.

+ Facility Condition Assessments:
Consultant WSP conducted
evaluations of core city
buildings—including the
Multiplex, RCMP detachment
and City Hall—providing
a foundation for long-
term capital planning and
maintenance.

PARKS

To better serve the public, the Parks
department:

» Expanded coverage to seven
days a week (April-October)
This enabled Parks staff to
support weekend special
events and parks during the
busier months.

- Started seasonal staff two
weeks earlier than in previous
years to get a jump on the turf
growing season.

« Renovated Cal Davies field
including infield upgrades and
installation of drainage.

+ Completed track line
repainting at Bob Dailey
Stadium Transitioned Canal
Waterfront Park into John
Douglas Park at tiipis as a
commemoration of late
Councillor, John Douglas.

* Introduced new turf mower to
the fleet.

CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

« Launched new systems for
tracking tree health and
maintenance.

« Undertook sports field
assessment.

These efforts reflect a proactive
approach to asset management
and environmental stewardship.

15,952

PEOPLE VISTED THE
MUSEUM IN 2024

4,882

CHILDREN/YOUTH

1,215

ADULTS

519

HEART MEMBERSHIPS

PARTICIPATED IN
OUR PROGRAMS

934

SWIMMING
LESSON
PARTICIPANTS
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RECREATION

The year 2024 was one of growth and development
for our recreation and aquatic programs and
special events for our bustling community. Our staff
worked diligently to organize and run a variety of
registered programs as well as expand our drop-in
services at our facilities.

FAST FACTS

With a growing population and demand for
accessible programs, 2024 was a year of expansion
and innovation in recreation services:

+ Significant increase in registrations for hockey and
skating programs (+75 per cent over 2023).

- Strong growth in adult fitness/yoga offerings, often
reaching full capacity within a day of registration.

« Echo Aquatic Centre & Fitness Studio welcomed
nearly 55,000 visits, while camps and youth
programs saw notable gains.

We also welcomed 11 new Lifeguard/Swim
Instructors, including a full-time Aquatic Team
Leader, allowing the department to reintroduce
weekend hours—a long-awaited improvement to
service delivery.
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$65,000 from the BC Arts Council (Alberni Valley
Museum)

$1,500 BCRPA Family Day Grant (Echo Aquatic
Centre, Glenwood Sports Centre, Multiplex)

$1,200 ParticipACTION Community Challenge Grant

$12,180 Canada Summer Jobs Grant (summer
camp staff)

A 20-passenger bus donation from residents at Fir
Park Village for community excursions

Moving into 2025, the Parks, Recreation and Culture
department is looking to solidify and maintain a
strong level of service for our facilities and their
drop-in sessions as well as the registered programs
for children, youth and adults offered throughout
the year. The expansion of hours on Saturdays and
re-introducing Sundays at the Echo Aquatic Centre
& Fitness Studio has been a major accomplishment
that we have been working on for over two years. It's
great to see additional staff being trained and hired
to support our aquatic operations.



We are focused on delivering exceptional service and preparing for the future through bold initiatives,
including:

CULTURE
+ Launching two new curriculum-linked education programs and an Educator Resource webpage

+ Commencing a multi-year re-interpretation of the museum'’s visible storage gallery to include inclusive
narratives and community collaboration

FACILITIES
« Replacing the Public Works Yard boiler for enhanced efficiency and safety (completion summer 2025)

PARKS

« Tree planting initiative: 1,000 stems across Dry Creek, Roger Creek, and Maquinna trails (spring and fall)
Renovating Esso Park

Phase Il upgrades at Echo sports fields
« Continuing trail counter data collection at the Quay to Quay Pathway
« Updating the Parks and Public Spaces Bylaw (1981)Recreation

RECREATION
+ Expanding weekend hours at Echo Aquatic Centre

+ Maintaining program excellence while introducing fresh, in-demand offerings for all ages




YOUR FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

The Finance department maintains the City’s high standard
of financial management by providing citizens, elected
officials, staff, and vendors with professional service
through the collection and disbursement of funds and
financial reporting. The department also oversees the

City’'s Information Technology department and the Asset
Management program.
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WE DELIVER FOR YOU

The Finance Department supports
the strategic direction and
financial leadership of the City.
Our responsibility is to ensure the
effective use of the City’s financial
resources and assets, while
developing and implementing
strategic goals and delivering
high-quality services that provide
value to taxpayers.

We serve the public, local
businesses, and all City
departments. Our core financial
services include financial
reporting, budgeting, investment
and debt management, property
tax and utility billing and
collection, accounts payable and
receivable, payroll, purchasing
and procurement, grant tracking
and reporting and reserve fund
management.

The Information Technology (IT)
Department is also part of our
finance team. IT provides the
backbone for the City's technology
systems and supports all municipal
operations by maintaining
software, systems, networks, and
cyber security.

The Asset Management

program also plays a key role

in supporting financial and
operational sustainability. By
combining financial planning,

risk management, and lifecycle
costing, the program helps

ensure the City’s infrastructure is
maintained, renewed, and planned
for over the long term.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

Responsible fiscal and information
technology management is
critical to the effective operation
of the City.

In 2024, the City focused on Level
of Service and the associated
improvements made to the
presentation of each department

within the Financial Plan. The
changes now provide a clearer
picture of the true cost to deliver
the variety of services to the
community.

In 2024, the Finance department
also strengthened its Asset
Management framework by:

« Onboarding a new Manager of
Asset Management to enhance
leadership and coordination.

« Conducting a comprehensive
review of asset management
policies to improve alignment
with strategic goals.

+ Improving asset inventory
and data accuracy for better
decision-making.

« Enhancing integration
with master planning
efforts, ensuring long-term
sustainability.

« Implementing asset
management technology to
support efficient infrastructure
management.

« Carrying out stakeholder
engagement across the
organization to help align
asset management and
departmental priorities.

FAST FACTS

« The City collected $57 million in
total revenue for 2024.

+ Property taxation accounted
for $30 million of the City’s
revenue.

« Sales of Service were $14.4
million in 2024.

« Asset condition ratings
implemented for City facilities,
informing renewal strategies.

« Pathway and trail
classifications implemented
to enhance master plan
integration with asset
management.

« Fleet data improved and
Asset ID’s fully integrated

into AssetFinda, improving
operational efficiency.

+ Completed multiple grant-
funded asset management
reports, strengthening
infrastructure renewal funding.

AWARDS AND GRANTS

+ $7.9 million in grant and
transfer funding.

« Secured $15,000 UBCM Asset
Management Planning grant.

» Received training subsidies
for Asset Management BC
workshops.

INTO THE FUTURE

In 2025, the Asset Management
program will focus on implementing
refined asset lifecycle strategies,
expanding risk assessments,

and further integrating asset
management with master
planning efforts, as well as
ongoing improvements in data
accuracy, system capabilities,
and departmental collaboration.

The Finance Department will
continue to seek opportunities
to improve the workflow and
processes in the organization for
financial services including:

« Accounts Payable digitalization
processes;

« Completion of upgrades to the
electronic payroll processing
systems; and

» Finance & Information
Technology policy updates.

IN TOTAL
REVENUE

COLLECTED
FOR 2024
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YOUR ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT

The primary function of the Economic Development
department is to identify and promote measures that will
increase the City’s tax base and non-tax revenue sources,
retain existing businesses and attract businesses that will
support and diversify the local economy.
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WE DELIVER FOR YOU

The City’s Economic Development
Department works in collaboration
with staff, Indigenous partners,
local organizations, and provincial
and federal stakeholders to

drive investment, diversify the
economy and support community
resilience. From grant writing and
business attraction to regional
partnerships and strategic
initiatives, 2024 was a year of
impactful progress.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

Several landmark initiatives
moved forward in 2024:

+ The Quay to Quay multimodal
pathway was completed
with support from a $2.5
million Investing in Canada
Infrastructure Program grant.
This waterfront route links
key parts of the community
and enhances transportation,
tourism and recreation.

+ A $1 million Rural Economic
Diversification and Infrastructure
Program grant helped the
City remediate a localized
contaminated site on the
former Somass Lands, paving
the way for future development.

« A $441,000 BC Active
Transportation Infrastructure
grant funded the linkage of the
Scott Kenny Trail and Roger
Creek Park, providing greater
access to the Roger Creek
Ravine.

+ The historic Train Station was
leased to Twin City Brewing
following nearly $1 million in
seismic and base-building
upgrades, one-third of which
was grant-funded. This
revitalization both preserves
heritage and supports local
enterprise.

« The City, in partnership with
Tseshaht and Hupacasath First
Nations, completed a three-
year Community Economic
Development Initiative (CEDI),
a collaborative program
focused on building long-term
economic prosperity for the
region.

FAST FACTS

« Four film productions were
partially shot in Port Alberni,
showcasing the city’s growing
profile as a creative destination.

» Port Alberni was selected as one

of only three B.C. communities
to present local investment
opportunities to Global Affairs
Canada staff internationally.

AWARDS/GRANTS

The City helped secure major
funding for transformative
initiatives:

+ $400,000+ in combined grants
is enabling the development of
an Indigenous-themed artisan
market at Clutesi Haven Marina
Uplands, in partnership with
Tseshaht and Hupacasath First

Nations. The grants cover 97 per

cent of the total project cost.

« A $229,152 Community
Workforce Response Grant
funded a Deconstruction and
Salvage Training Program
delivered by North Island
College on the Somass Lands—
building workforce skills while
preparing the site for reuse.

INTO THE FUTURE

Port Alberni continues to attract

one new family per day, drawn by

affordability, central location and
quality of life. This trend includes
both young families and early

retirees, offering opportunities for

economic and social growth.

Key initiatives on the horizon
include.

« Drafting an Economic
Development Master Plan;

« Launching a community
branding initiative;

« Conducting research into the
future of forestry in the region;

 Exploring an expansion of
Dock+—the city's seafood
processing hub and business
incubator—with a proposed
innovation centre focused
on seafood by-product
recovery and circular economy
practices;

+ Continuing advocacy and
mitigation strategies related to
global tariffs that may affect
local businesses; and

« Sustaining efforts to recruit and
retain small business owners
and healthcare professionals.

RECEIVED ALMOST

IN
\ SN\ GRANTFUNDING
(\. FOR ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT
INITIATIVES IN THE
CITY

ON AVERAGE
ONE NEW FAMILY
MOVED TO PORT

ALBERNI EACH DAY
IN 2024!
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The City’s Infrastructure Services department designs

and manages municipal infrastructure including streets,
bridges, sewer systems, storm drainage, water and solid
waste/garbage collection. The department also manages
cemetery administration and oversees road construction
and maintenance.
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WE DELIVER FOR YOU

Infrastructure Services is dedicated
to providing high-quality services
that enable growth, health, and
quality of life in Port Alberni. The
department is responsible for
essential services like water,
sewer, roads, and public works.
From maintaining infrastructure
to planning for future growth, our
team works every day to support
a safe, healthy, and connected
community.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

STREETS

The City maintains over 150 kms
of paved roads, and 135 kms

of sidewalks. The streets crew
perform asphalt surface repairs,
snow and ice removal, street
sweeping, vegetation control, as
well as streetlight, signage, and
traffic light maintenance.

In 2024, 13 Rectangular Reflective
Flashing Beacons were installed
in priority locations to improve
pedestrian safety at intersections.
This program will continue at
further locations in 2025 across
the city. Staff also completed the
replacement of a large section

of pavement on Wallace Street
between 9th and 10th Avenue
including the installation of
sidewalk letdowns, new crosswalk
markings, and new in-pavement
traffic sensors.

Sidewalk power washing also
continued with great success in
2024, removing built up moss and
dirt, contributing to a brighter,
cleaner community for all to enjoy.

WATER

The City is responsible for the
operations and maintenance of
our drinking water distribution
system including three supply
dams, five reservoirs, the water
treatment plant, four pump stations,
170 kms of pipe, 750 fire hydrants,
and over 6,800 water meters.

In 2024 the Johnston Road and
Upper Cowichan water reservoirs
were cleaned and inspected. This
regular maintenance not only
ensures continued delivery of
clean, safe drinking water that our
residents expect, but also confirms
the reservoir structures remain in
good condition. The Bainbridge
Water Treatment Plant ultraviolet
bulbs were also replaced ensuring
continued effective disinfection of
our drinking water.

WASTEWATER

The City maintains and operates
the wastewater and stormwater
collection systems comprised

of over 260 kms of sanitary and
storm pipe, 3,600 manholes,
2,350 catch basins, six pumping
stations, 110 storm outfalls, four
combined sewer overflows, and
the wastewater treatment facility.

MORE THAN
CUBIC
METERS OF

HIGH-QUALITY
DRINKING
WATER
PROVIDED

In 2024, the Josephine Sanitary
Lift Station Programmable
Logic Controller was upgraded,
improving reliability and
functionality. A compromised
suspended sewer main near
South Street and 3rd Avenue
was replaced and converted to
a buried main and a significant
failure on a major sewer
forcemain was repaired at Stamp
Avenue and Nuupts' lkapis Way
ensuring continued responsible
collection, transmission and
treatment of wastewater.

SOLID WASTE

The City operates the three
stream (organics, garbage,
recycling) collection program

in partnership with the Alberni-
Clayoquot Regional District.

The fleet of three solid waste
collection trucks are on the road
four days per week collecting
solid waste from homes across
the city.

667 TONNES OF
RECYCLING DIVERTED
FROM LANDFILL

/2y
Y

2,221

TONNES OF ORGANIC
WASTE DIVERTED FROM
LANDFILL

1,100

REQUESTS FOR

@B  SERVICE WERE
%9  RESPONDED TO

L 4

o

The department also delivers,
maintains, and repairs the three
different collection cart types.
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FLEET

The City is responsible for
purchasing and maintaining
our fleet of City vehicles. A

team of mechanics work on
everything fromn compact cars,
excavators and street sweepers,
to generators that provide
electricity to our critical facilities
such as sewage lift stations and
the Fire Hall. Staff are capable
of taking on major repair work,
and are also certified to carry
out provincially regulated vehicle
inspections.

In 2024, 13 pieces of equipment
were replaced at the end of their
useful life. Additionally, two more
solid waste collection trucks
were placed on order and are
expected to arrive in 2025. These
trucks will finalize the collection

truck fleet replacement and
provide reliable service for years
to come.

ENGINEERING

The City’s engineering team is
responsible for planning and
coordinating engineering work
and capital projects, maintaining
an effective municipal
infrastructure plan, and being
the gatekeepers of construction
standards and principles.
Engineering staff act as liaisons
with contractors, developers,
public utilities, government
officials, and other outside
agencies as required. Project
Managers direct and oversee
capital projects and programs
and act as representatives on
behalf of the City.

Geographic Information System
(GIS) staff are responsible

for building and maintaining
geospatial databases to support
all departments across the
organization.

In 2024, the department helped
launched a number of important
long-term planning initiatives
including:

 Fire Services Master Plan

« Parks, Recreation and Culture
Master Plan

« Transportation Master Plan

« Stormwater and Combined
Sewer Overflow Master Plan

When complete, these plans will
form a strategic and financial
road map for City staff to
implement over the next ten
years.

Additional master planning
projects for other key programs
will begin in 2025.




« 2221 tonnes of organic waste
diverted from the landfill

« 667 tonnes of recycling
diverted from the landfill

+ 2038 tonnes of garbage
collected

+ 4 million cubic meters of
potable water delivered

+ 5.6 million cubic meters of
wastewater safely treated
before discharge back to the
environment

« Over 1100 Public Works service
requests responded to

Early in 2025, it is expected that
the demolition and preparation
of the Somass Lands site will be
complete for future development.
This exciting project will reshape
the look and feel of the 43-acre
waterfront property. The City has
partnered with Matthews West
Developments Ltd. to create a
mixed-use site that provides
public access to the waterfront,
generating a vibrant community
for residents and visitors to enjoy.

The Burde Street redevelopment
between 10th Avenue and 16th
Avenue will be completed by

the third quarter of 2025. This
project includes the addition of
multimodal lanes and upgraded
pedestrian safety features that
will greatly enhance the area
while providing safer commuting
options for our residents.




Your City Administration team is comprised of the Chief
Administrative Officer, Corporate Services department,
Communications, Human Resources, Bylaw Services and
support staff working collaboratively to facilitate and deliver
high-quality services to our citizens.
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WE DELIVER FOR YOU

Corporate Services handles

key internal and public-facing
functions, including legislative
services, communications,
human resources, information
services, bylaw compliance,
community policing, and support
services for the RCMP.

LET'S TALK PROGRESS

Your Corporate Services
department provides support for
Council, Committees of Council
and departmental operations
ensuring a coordinated and
balanced implementation of
Council's 2023-2027 Corporate
Strategic Plan. In 2024, the
department provided legislative
support for:

+ 21 Regular meetings of Council;
25 Special meetings of Council;

« 13 Committee of the Whole
meetings;

- four public hearings; and
+ 13 other committee meetings.

These meetings helped
move forward key decisions
and initiatives across all City
departments.

COMMUNITY POLICING

The Community Policing program
partnered with local agencies,
businesses and residents to
promote neighbourhood safety
and awareness throughout

2024. A dedicated group of 25
volunteers contributed 4,290
hours to various programs.
Highlights include:

» 2,420 volunteer hours dedicated
to Crime Watch;

« 780 business check-ins
completed;

« 51,594 vehicles monitored
through the ICBC-sponsored
Speed Watch program;

» 58,962 vehicles monitored for
distracted driving; and

« 1,426 Property Crime Awareness
letters delivered.

BYLAW SERVICES

Working alongside Community
Policing and the RCMP, the City’s
Bylaw Services team responded
to 892 calls for service in 2024.
These included:

« 207 calls related to abandoned
or unlawfully stored vehicles
(including trailers and RVs).

+ 141 calls related to the Property
Maintenance Bylaw.

+ 87 calls related to camping
violations under the Traffic
Bylaw.

» 69 calls related to the Solid
Waste Bylaw.

« 37 calls related to the Zoning
Bylaw.

» 24 calls related to the Nuisance
Abatement Bylaw.

These efforts supported community
safety and helped maintain a
higher quality of life for residents.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Human Resources team
supported departments across
the City in a wide range of
areas, including recruitment,
staff development, training,
and workplace safety. Key 2024
accomplishments included:

+ Hiring 70 new employees.

+ Launching new systems for
employee onboarding and
safety training tracking.

+ Updating several key HR
policies.

 Successfully completing the
WorkSafeBC Certificate of
Recognition (COR) audit.

« Implementing new WorkSafe
BC first aid regulations with
required training.

CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

« Coordinating modified and
return-to-work plans for injured
employees.

+ Leading the collective
bargaining process with CUPE
Local 118.

COMMUNICATIONS

The Communications team
supported all departments by
delivering clear, consistent,

and timely information to

the public and staff. In 2024,
communications helped
increase transparency, improve
community engagement, and
build trust with residents. Key
accomplishments included:

+ Issuing more than 90 news
releases and public notices.

+ Helpping coordinate dozens
of public engagement events
and supported consultation
for major projects including
the Quay to Quay Pathway,
Parks Master Plan, and budget
outreach.

« Maintaining the City’s digital
platforms and expanded use of
the City’s online engagement
tool, Let’'s Connect.

+ Providing communications
support for emergency planning
and public safety messaging
in coordination with Fire, Bylaw,
and the Alberni-Clayoquot
Regional District.

S

413
RESOLUTIONS
PASSED DURING
THE 21 REGULAR

MEETINGS OF
COUNCIL
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The 2023 - 2025 Corporate Strategic Plan, released in
May 2023, continues to guide the City’'s operations
and priorities.

« On Sept. 23, Council invited residents to join a
community walk along the newly built Quay to
Quay Pathway.

+ On Sept. 25, the second annual “Connect with
Your City” Open House took place at Echo Centre,
offering residents a chance to meet staff and
learn about each department’s work.

+ In December 2024, Corporate Services
successfully held a Council by-election.

+ In 2024, Council passed 20 bylaws, approved 10
policies, and signed 42 agreements.

+ Council passed 413 resolutions during its 21
regular meetings.

+ Issued more than 90 news releases and public
notices.

« Bylaw Services responded to 892 calls for service
in 2024.

+ The City’'s Human resources team hired 70 new
employees in 2024.

+ Volunteers with the Community Policing team
dedicated 2,420 hours to Crime Watch in the
community.

Looking forward, the administrative team will
continue to strive for excellence in all aspects

of municipal management/governance. They

will continue to improve processes and ensure
transparency through the establishment and
renewal of bylaws and policies and the continued
updating of Now, Next, Later Action Plan, a
strategic road map of the City of Port Alberni’s
projects and initiatives.

The City will also focus on the development of key
strategic documents that guide the corporation’s
conduct. These documents include a social
media policy, communications strategy and a
consultation and engement framework to align
how the organizations engages with the public on
major municipal projects and initiatives.
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Year Ended December 31, 2024



Independent Auditor's Report MN‘

To Mayeor and Council of the City of Port Albemi:
Opinion

‘We have audited the consclidated finandial statements of the City of Port Albemi (the "City™], which comiprize the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of operations.
financizl position, changs in net debt and cash flows and related schedules 1to 4 for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financizl statements, including a summarny of significant accounting paolicies.

Im our opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all matenial respects, the
concolidatad financial position of the City as at December 31, 2024, and the results of it= consolidated cperations,
changes in its net debt and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Cur responsibilities
under those standards ars further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the City in accordance with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the consclidated finandial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled
cur other ethical responsibilitiss in accordance with these reguirements. '\We believe that the audit evidences we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

Cur audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements @ken as a
whiole. The current year's supplementary information, incheding schedules 5 @ 1. have bsen presented for purposes
of additional analyziz. We do not express an audit cpinion on schedules 5 to 11 because our examination did not
extend to the detailed information therein.

Other Information

banzagement iz responsible for the other information, consisting of an annual repaort, which & expectad o be made
available w us after the date of this auditor's report.

Cur opindon on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not exprass
any form of asswrance conclusion therson

In conmection with cur audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is o read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally inconsistent with the consolidated
financizl statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to b2 materizlly misstated.

When wie read the annual report, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement thersin, we are reguired to
communicate the matter to those charged with govemance.

Respansibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

banzgement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public secior accounting standards, and for such intemal control 25 managemsnt
determines is necessary to enable the preparstion of consclidated financial statements that are free from matenial
misstatement whether due to frawd or error.

MMP LLP
400 MMP Plaoe, 345 Wallace Streer, Manalmo B.C W3R SBE T: 250753.8251 F: 250.754.3939
FIPRAXITY NP ca
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In preparing the consolidated financizl statements, management is responsible for assessing the Ciny's ability to
continue a5 a going concem, disdlosing, as applicable. matters related to going concemn and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless management sither intends to liguidate the City or o cease operations, or has no realistic
altermative but to do so.

Thaose charged with govemnance are responsible for oversesing the City's financial reparting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finandial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstazement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that indudes our
cpinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit condwcted in
accordance with Canadian generally socepted auditing standards will always detect @ material misstatement when it
exists. Mizsstatements can anise from fraud or emrer and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users @@ken on the basis of these
concolidated financizl statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standands, we exercise professional
judgrment and maintain prefessional skepticism throwghout the audit We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatermnent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
i fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtin audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting 3 materizl
misstatement resuliing from fraud is higher than for cne resuliting from error, as fravd may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= (Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design auwdit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City's intemal control.

= Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting polices used and the reasonzblensess of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by managemeant.

+ Concwde on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accountng and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncerainty exists related 1o events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the City's ability @ continue as 3 going concem. If we concluds that a material
uncerainty exisis, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated finandal statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate. to medify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditcr’s repert However, future
events or conditions may cause the City to cease 1o continue as 3 going concem.

= Evaluate the overall presenation, structure and content of the consolidated finandal statements, induding
the disdosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements represent the underlying tranzactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropniate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the City as 3 basis for forming am opinion an the
consolidated financizl statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
wark performed for the purposes of the group awdit We remain sclely respensible for cur audit opinion

‘We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sgnificant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our audit.

Nanaime, Eritish Columbia M A/ P LLP

May 12, 2025 Charterad Professional Accountants

MNP
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CITY OF PORT ALBERNI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As af December 31, 2024

2024 2023
FIMANCIAL ASSETS
Gash and cash equivalents $ 4663223 F 1,607,017
Investments (Mote 2) 28T AT4 34,763,623
Accounts recelvable (Mote 2) 12,745,052 9,533 228
Inventary for resahs 24,575 0,570
Investment In govermment business enterpaise (Noke 4) 1,334 357 2,404 595
47684721 48,458,037
FIMANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accreed Eablities (Mobe 5) 11,636,300 a,ma2a23
Deferred revenue (Mabz T) T.504 424 7,155,985
Refundable deposits 1,280,652 1,570, 988
Long-tamm debt (Mote 11, Schagule 3) 20,327 855 21,003,293
Assel Retiremani Obligations |Maba 12) 20,802 008 42617953
&1.611,033 82,541,142
HET DEBT [13.346,318) {34,032 105)
Commiiments and Contingancies [Hots 18)
MON-FIMANCLAL A35ETS
Inventary of supplies ¥e2,0:0 B3,822
Prapald expenses 358,845 297 356
Tangiole capital assets (Mote 15, Schedule 1) 185,183,547 200,747 291
186,504 452 201,525,069
ACCUMULATED SURPLLIS [NOTE 18] § 172558134 § 157.E£6364

Approved on behalf of the City

(ed

Andrew McEifGrd
Director of Finance

The accompanying nofes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial stafemenis
1



CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

REVENUE
Taxation [Schetule 4)
Sale of senvices
Oahar revenue om AT SOUrTEs
Invesiment Income
Grants and transfers (Mole 17)
Recognition of developer coninbutions
3aln {0s5) on disposal of tangible capital assets Loss
from Investment In govemmert business [Hote 4)

EXPEMSES
Ganaral gl'l'EI'I'II'I'IE"It s2MVices
Protective services
Transpartation senvices
Environmertal healih senvices
Environmenial and economic development
Recreation and cultural senvices
WWater Lty
Sawer utllity
Oiher

ANMUAL SURPLUS

Aceumuiated surplus, begining of year

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS - EMD OF YEAR

Budgst 2024 2023
[Mots 2]

5 3.2E07S § 30936748 5 275735452
12,107,858 14.3453C8 13580841
1,692,005 1,920,921 1,251,637

710,000 1,315,321 1,782,050
1,545,447 T.0E3,153 14346216
- GE2,T1E -

- 2,247 8510 (56,708}

- [(170,242) [36,615)
47274335 58,988,795 59,020,331

3 E458451 § 5212301 3 4TI2EID
14B56.714  16.580,7B4 15073526
6,497,624 8,087,385 3,012,334
1,573,357 1,558,737 1,337,702
1,730,047 2,028,503 1,539,625
7.B50,210 9,828,300 9,157,854
2,146,450 2,7E9,291 2,843T1E
1,548,750 8,134,714 8,655,501

- 18,254 -

L2064 772 S4277.823 51403571
4,309,613 4,711,168 7616620

167,B4E,564 167,846,964 160,230,144

§ 172,156,577 § 172,558,134 § 167,546,064

The accompanying nofes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements

2
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHAMGE IN NET DEET
As at December 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023
Mot 19)

ANNUAL SURPLUS 3 4309513 F 4T1I6E 3 FAIGAX
Aguisifion of Tangils Captal Ascate | AT 28T {12,959, 45T (16432 538]
Davaapar Conbibuted Assets {GBZ ™6

Amarfeation 89703 9082 957
AccraBan 592061 1520017
Gan deposal of langive capityl assats {2,247 810 98 709
Loss (Gain ] fram sale affangink cagial assets 46,500

Changs in Tangiok Cagital Assats dus fo Assel Reframant OoEgations 21,815,845 (L2617 .953)

., 169 57 ) 20,274,914 (40,733,988)

Aoquisiton of supnly Ereamary {962 060 {H83 822}
Acquisifon of prapaid anpanses {358, B45) {297 058}
CansumpBan of nvantary o Suppies BRI B22 B4£8 291
U=a af pmapaid anpanses 29T 956 2AT2TE
{139,127 {298 210}
CHAMNGE 1 NET DEBT W, 169 57 8] 20,135 78T (41,030 1948)
Mal financial assets, (nel daibd] baginming of yaar (34082 105, {34,082 105 6,948 091
WET DEET - END GF YEAR 3 (38251781} § (13,946,218 3 (34082 105}

The accompanyng noles are an inlegral part of hese consoldaled fnancal slatemants
3



CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
As st December 31, 2024

Cash provided by [used Inj:

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual surplus

Mon-cash ems

Devisioper Contributed AsSElE
Amonization
Agcretion
{Loss) galn on disposal of tanglble capitsl assets
INCome {J0SS) from IVEStmEnt In JovEmmeant businass anterdse
Achuarial adjestment
Inventory of sUDpiles
Prapald expenses

Changes In warking capital balancss

ACCouUnts recelvabis
Inventory for resale
Accounis payanle and accruad lablliies
Defemed revenue
Refmdabic deposis

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of tangibi= capital assats

Proceeds from sa= of tangibie capital assats

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Diwidend Trom gowemment Dusiness enterpriss

Change In Investments

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term deat
Procaeds from long-term debt

INCREASE [DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUNVALENTS

C:ash and Cash Equivaients - Begining of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YE&R

2024 2023
§ 4TI168 5 TEIEA
(E82.718) -
£.979,023 5,082,957
532,081 1,520,017
[2.247.810) 06,708
170,242 ®515
{143,424 {132,208)
[78.238) {238 531)
{50.883) [60.E79)
[2811,864) (3,403,697
5,335 {2,5DE)
1903377 (1915172
348 439 278 AT1
{630.336) 720,236
5989229 13551745
[12.939,457)  [16,432,53E)
46,500 -
[12.832.357) [16.432.53E)
300,000 300,000
5992148 (11,559,852
6292149  [11.558,852)
{526.214) {354,249)
- 8,500,000
{526.214)  B135751
2862207  (5,304,894)
1,807,017 8,111,910
$ 4069223 5 1807017

The accompanying nofes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial sfatemenis

4
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

b}

Significant Accounting Policies

Thie City of Port Alberni (the "City"} is a municipality in the Province of British Celumbia and operates under
the provisions of the Community Charter. The activities of the City are camied out through the following funds:
General Revenue Fund, General Capital Fund, Reserve Fumds, Water Revenue Fund, Water Capital Fund,
Sewer Revenue Fund, and Sewer Capital Fund.

The consolidated financial statements of the City are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Reporfing entity

The consolidated financial statements refleet the assets, liabilites, revenues, expenses.and accumulated
surplus of the City. Inter-deparimental balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The City’s business partnership, the Albemni Valley Community Forest Corporation, which is owned and
contralled by the City but not dependent on the City for their continuing operations, are included in the
consolidated financial statements using the modified eguity method.

Under the maodified equity method, the accounting policies for the wholly owned subsidiary are not adjusted to
conform to those of the City. The Albemi Valley Community Forest Corporation reports under International
Financial Reporting Standards. The City's investment in this entity is recorded at acguisition cost and is
increased for the proportionate share of post-acguisition earnings and decreased by post acguisition losses
and distributicns received.

The City administers certain trusts on behalf of extermal parties which are excluded from the financial
statements.

Basis of presentation

Thie City practices fund accountimg. Funds are segregated for the purpose of carmying on specific activities ar
attaining certain cbjectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations. Funds currently in
Use are:

General Revenus Fund

Agcount for all financial rescurces except those required to be accounted for im another fund. The General
Revenue Fund is the Ciy's operating fund including collection of taxation, administering operations, roads,
policing, fire protection ete.

Capital Funds

Agcount for all capital assets and unfunded work-in-progress of the City and offset by long-term debt and
inwestment in capital assets.




CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

&)

d)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of presentation {continued)

Reserve Fundsz

Account for activities within designated funds established for specific purposes with the approval of the
Ministry of Housing and Municipal Affairs. The funds are govemned by bylaws defining their purpose and are

funded primarily by budgetary contributions from the General Revenue Fund plus interest eamed on the fund
balances.

Water and Sewer Funds

Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business operations,
where the intent is that costs of providing the services on a conmtinuing basis be financed through user
charges.

Basis of sccounting

The City follows the accrual methed of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are normally
recognized in the year in which they are samed and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are
imcurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services andfor the creation of a legal obligation to

pay.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events cccumed that
gave rise to the revenues, the amounts are considered to be collectible and can be reasonably estimated.
Contributions received or where eligibility crteria have been met are recognized as revenue except where the
coniribution meets the criteria for deferral as descrbed below. For contributions subject to a legislative or
contraciual stipulation or restriction as to their use, revenue is recognized as follows:

= Mon-capital confributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as
revenue in the year related expenses are incurred,

» Coniributions resiricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions are recorded as deferred capital revenue
and amoriized over the useful life of the related asseis when recognized.

Donated and contributed tangible capital assets are recorded at fair market value and amortized over the
useful life of the assets. Revenue from transactions with performance obligations is recognized when {or as)
the performance obligation is satisfied (by providing the promised goods or services to a payor). Revenue
from transactions with no performance obligations is recognized when:

(iy  has the authorty io claim or retain an inflow of economic resources; and
(i} identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise o an asset

Income from investments in govemment business enterprises is recorded using the modified equity method
based on the annual eamings from the govemnment business enterprise for the year.
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

e

gl

h)

Significant Accounting Policies [continued)

Government fransfers

Govemnment tramsfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authonzed and amy eligibility criteria
are met, excepi to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that mests the definition of a
liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenus when fransfer stipulations give rise o a liability.
Transfer revenue is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are seitled.

Deferred revenue

Defered revenue includes non-govemment grants, contributions and other amounis received from third
parties pursuant to legislation, regulation and agreement which may only be used in certain programs, in the
completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets. In addition, ceriain user charges
and fees are collected for which the related services have yet io be performed. Revenue is recognized in the
period when the related expenses are incurred, services obligations are performed, or the tangible capital
assets are acquired. Development cost charges are amounts which are restricted by govermment legislation or
agreement with external parties. When qualifying expenditures are incurred development cost charges are
recognized as revenue in amounis which equal the associated expenses.

Investment income

Inwestment income is reported as revenus in the pericd earmed. When required by the funding govemment or
related act, investment income samed on deferred revenue is added to the investment and forms part of the
deferred revenue balance. Investment income is allocated to warows reserves and operating funds on a
proporticnate basis.

Financial Insfruments

The City recognizes its financial instruments when the City becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value. At initial recognition, the
City may irrevocably elect to subseguently measure any financial instrument at fair value. The City has not
made such an election during the year.

The City subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market and all
derivative instruments, except those that are linked to, and must be settled by delivery of, unguaoted equity
insiruments of anocther eniity, at fair value. Fair value is determined by published price guotations.
Transactions to purchase or sell these fems are recorded on the trade date. Net gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. The City has not
presented a statement of remeasurement gains and losses as it does not hawve amy items giving nse fo
remeasurement gains (losses).

Interest income is recognized in the statement of operations. Imeestments in equity instruments not gquoted in
an active market and dervatives that are linked to, and must be settled by delivery of, unguoted equity
instruments of anather entity, are subsequently measured at cost With the exception of those instruments
designated at fair value, all other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amoriized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the orgination, acquisition,
issuance or assumption of financial instruments subsequently measured at fair value are immediately
recognized im operating annual surplus . Conversely, transaction costs are added to the camying amount for
thase financial instruments subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost




CITY OF PORT ALBERNI
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

]

k)

m)

n)

Significant Accounting Policies [continued)
Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents imclude short-term highly liquid investments with a term to maturity of %0 days or less at
acquisition.

Debt
Debt is recorded net of principal repayments and actuanal adjustmenis.
Employee future benefits

Thie City and its employees participate im a Munizipal Pension Plan. The Flan is a mult-employer contributory
defined benefit pension plan. Paymenis in the year are expensed. Sick leave benefits and retirement
severance benefits are also available to the Ciy's employees. The costs of these benefits are actuarially
determined based on service and estimates of retirement ages and expected fulure salary and wage
increases. The obligation under these benefit plans is accrued based on projecied benefit costs as employses
earn the future benefits.

Hon-financial assets

Mon-fimancial assets are not available to discharge existing Babilities and are held for use in the provision of
services. They hawve useful lives extendimg beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the
ordinary course of operations.

Use of esfimafes

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liakilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amownts of revenues and expenses during
the pericd. Significant estimates include assumptions wsed in estimating provisions for accounts receivable,
imventony, accrued liabilities, performing calculations of employee future benefits, estimating the useful lives of
tangible capital assets. and estimating asset retirement obligations. Liabilities for contaminated sites are
estimated based on the best information available regarding potentially contaminated sites that the City is
responsible for. Developer contributions of tangible capital assets are recorded at the City's best estimate of
fair value on the date of contributiom, calculsted wsimg engimneering plans and standardized item cost
estimates. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Refundable deposits

Rezeipts restricted by third parties are deferred and reported as refundable deposits umder certain
circumstances. Refundable depasits are returmned when the third party mests their obligations, or the depaosits
are recognized as revenue when qualifying expenditures are incurred.
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CITY OF FORT ALEERMNI
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

o)

o)

q)

Significant Accounting Policies [continued)

Liakilify for contaminated sifes

& liability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized at the best estimate of the amount reguired o
re-mediate the contaminated site when contamination exceeding an envirenmental standard exists, the City is
either directly responsible or accepis responsibility, it is expected that future economic benefits will be given
up, and a reasonable estimate of the amount is determinable. The best estimate of the liability includes all
costs directly atiributable to remediation activities and is reduced by especied net recoveries based on
information available at December 31, 2024,

At each financial reporting date, the City reviews the camying amount of the liability. Amy revisions required o
the amount previowsly recognized is accounted for in the pericd revisions are made. The City continues fo
recognize the liability until & is settled or otherwise extinguished. Disbursements made fo setile the lability are
deducted from the reported liability when they are made.

Inwventory of Supplies

Inventory of supplies held for consumption is recorded at the lower of cost and replacement cost, using the
first in, first out method.

Reserve accounts

Reserves for future expenditures are non-statutory reserves, which represent an allocation of revenue for
specific purposes.

Assef retirement obligation

An asset retirement obligation s a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible capital assst
that the City will be required o settle. The City recognizes asset retirement obligations when there is a legal
cbligation to imcur retirements costs in relation to a tangible capital asset, the past transaction or event giving
rise to the liability has cccurred, it is expected that future economic benefits will be givem up, and a reasonable
estimate of the amount can be made.

Asset retirement obligations are initially measured at the best estimate of the amount required to retire
a tangible capital asset at the fimancial statement date. The estimate of a liability includes costs
directly attributable to assst retirement activities.

Asset retirement obligations are recorded as liabilities with a comresponding increase to the camying amount of
the related tangible capital assel Subseguently, the asset retirement costs are allocated to expenses over the
useful life of the tangible capital asset The cbligation is adjusted to reflect perod-to-period changes in the
liability resulting from the passage of time and for revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of the undiscounted cash flows or the discount rate.




CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

5] Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost includes all costs directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, or interest from financing of the tangible capital asset. Contributed
tangible capital assets are recorded as revenue at fair value at the time of contribution.

Thie useful life is applied straight line io calculate amortization at the following estimated wseful lves:

Assal Useful lifg - yaars
Land improvements 10 to 20 years
Buildings, including building components 25 to 40 years
Machinery and eguipment 5 to 30 years
Engineering structures 30 to 75 years
Storm systems 45 to 75 years
Transporiation systems 15 to 60 years
Water systems 8 to 75 years
Sewer systems 2to 75 years

Armortization is charged annually, including in the year of acquisition and disposal. Assets under construction
are not amortized wuntil the asset is available for productive use.

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt and are
recorded as revenue The City has capitalized interest costs associated with the construction of tangible
capital assets, during the perod of construction only. Matural resources that have not been purchased are not
recognized as assets in the financial statements. Works of art and cultural and historc assets are not
recorded as assets in these financial statements.

2.  Investments

Inwestments include funds imvested in Guaranteed Investment Certificates and Money Market Funds with
Raymond James, The Municipal Finance Authonty of B.C, and Canaccord Genuity. The investments are
carried at market value which is equal to the carrying walue. The investments have various maturity dates
betwesn 80 and 285 days with a range of interest rates batween 2. 80% and 4.95%.

3. Accounts Receivable

2024 2023
Proparty faxes § 2196510 3 1,412,629
Federal govemmient 160,034 31,974
General 10,388,088 B.2048,625

§ 12745082 3 5,933 238




CITY OF PORT ALEBERNI
HNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

Inwvestment in government business enterprise

The investment in the Albemi Yalley Community Forest Corporation (AVCFC) is reported as a govemnment
business enterprise (GBE) and accounted for wusing the modifisd eguity methad. Under this method, the
government business’ accounting principles are not adjusted to conform with those of the City and inter-
corporate transactions are not eliminated. The City owns 100% of the issued and cutstanding shares.

In the pricr and current year, the AVCFC financial statements were prepared under Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The following table provides condensed supplementary financial informnation for
the corporation at December 31, 2024,

2024 2023

Invesatment In Government Sualnesa EI'IIIHFFII"IB-E

Financial Assets % 2268507 § 3037742

Liablities 325,807 544,309

Equity 1,943,100 2,413,343
2,268, 507 3,057,742

Oparations

Revenus 265,735 1,423,792

Expenses £35377 1,460,407

Met logs ) {170,242} 3 [35,815)

2024 223
ANCFC shares $ 15
Aczumulated eamings to date 1,934,356 2,404,598

3 15T = 2404 530

Dwring the year the City received a dividend from AVCFC of $300,000 | 2023 - 5300,000)

11



CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

5  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Other o3l g:l'.l'EﬂﬂE"l'lE-

Trada acoounis

Saares and WaJes

Accresd gebenture Interast
Accrsed employes benefits (Nate T)

2024 2023
$ BE2 % 53,070
7.794 205 6,691,718
1.54E6,552 780,365
120,715 107,195
22339486 2,160,066
$ 11696300 5 9,742,923

6. Employee future benefits

The City provides bensfits for sick leave, vacation pay and ceriain retirement bensfit arrangements to its employees.

a) Retirement benefif payments

The City provides retirement benefits to qualifying employees who cease employment with the City after a specified
length of service. Retirement benefits are estimated for individual employees as per the appropriate collective
agreement, based on estimated salary costs at the fime of anticipated retirements, and discounting expected pay-

outs ower estimated years of service.

2024 2023
Eanafit labllfy — beginning of year s si2500 5 BE4,200
Add: cument s2nvice costs a4, 300 100,000
Intarast on accrued benelt oollgatns 37,500 28,20
Amartization of aciuaral loss S100 12,100
Adustmient far Change In discount rates 25,400
Less: Benefits paid [134,500) 1135,500)
Beneft I3ty — end of year 314,500 912,500
Unamoriized actuaral Ioss [&, 00 12,900)
Accnied benefit cbilgation — end of year ] Mes00 3 905,600
The retirement liability requires no contribution from the employees.
b) Accrued vacation liability
2024 2023
Accrued vacation payables - end of year L4 1.250 466 5 1,110,188
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

6. Employee future benefits (continued)

¢} Accumulated sick leave liability
The City provides benefits for sick leave to all its employees. Employees in the classification of CUPE and
Firefighter accumulate sick leave on a monthly basis amd cam only use this entittement for paid time off
under certain circumstances. Sick leave is accumulated to a maximum as determined by the appropriate

collective agreement. Sick leave for management employess doss not accumulate. At December 31, 2024,
this liability is estimated at $138,790 ( 2023 - 5140,268).

d} Employee benefit obligafions
Accrued Benefit Obligation assumptions were reviewed for the 2024 year end and updated based on
current market conditions. Accumulated sick leave liability is segragated from the accrued benefit
obligation liability for statement presentation.

2024 2023
#Accrued benefl obligation % eSS 3 909,600
Accued vacation payanle 1,187 656 1,110,153
Accirmulated sick l2ave IEnliny 133,730 140,268
Total EMpioyes biEnefit :I:Hh_-a.'.l:lm ] 2233546 3 E|1EIZIIEIE'5

7. Deferred revenue

Capital granis are restricted to spending on capital project expenses. Other deferred revenue is not restricted.

2024 2023
Opening Balance $ 6B1,353 3 837477
Capital grants, recsipts geD 822 5781771
Capital projects recognized into revenue (1,524, 004) (5,847.895)
Capital grants,_ending balance 18,171 ge1,.353
Properiy taxes 2327 8BBS 2126870
Orier 1,522 470 1,101,081
Development cost charges 3,635,858 32465085

% 7504424 37 155885

Development cost charges (DCCs)

Chpening Balances $ 3,246,595 53,177,801
Add: DCCs received during the year 322 508 (16,429)
Add: Imterest BG, 796 RS, 222

% 3635098 3 3.245.505




CITY OF PORT ALBERNI
MNOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

B. Community Building Fund

Canada’s Community Building funding is provided by the Federal government. The use of funding is established by a
funding agreement between the City and the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM ). These funds may be
usad towards designated infrastructure prajects that help communities build and revitalize public infrastructure
supporting economic growth and a clean environment. These funds are held in the Community Building Fund
Reserve [see Naote 16).

024 2023
Canada's Community Building Fund
Cpening Balance $3.237,726 $3.115.328
Add: Funding received during the year 894,814 BT2. 264
Less: Amount recognized as revenue {376.514) [(B52.024)
Add: Interest 126,862 103,058

53,882 883 $3.237 726

9. Local Housing  Initiatives Grant

The Local Govemnment Houwsing Initiatives program provides grant based funding to help facilitate
implementation and support local govermments to mest new legislative requirements for residential
development, transit-oriented areas, and to adopt new authorities for development financing.

The grant funding will support local governments im creating Loecal Govermment Housing  Initiative
requirements for small-scale multi-unit housing. These funds are being held in Projects & Purchases
Reserse (ses Note 18]

2024
Local Government Housing  Inifiative Grant
Received $ 237,804
Interim Housing Meeds Report (18.133)
Official Community Plan Framework & Engagement (178,207)
Zoning Bylaw Consalidation Planning |7,6EE)
Closing balance of unspent funds $ 35,778

10. Financial Instruments

The City as part of its operations cammies a number of financial instrumenis. it is management's position that the
City is not exposed to significant interest, currency, or credit risks arising from these financial instruments unless
otherwise disclosed.

14
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CITY OF PORT ALEBERMNI
HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

11. Debt

Debt Reserve Fund

The Albemi-Clayequot Regional District (ACRD) obiains long-term debt, on behalf of the City, through the
Municipal Finance Authority (MFA), pursuant to security issuing bylaws under the authority of the Local
Government Act, to finance certain capital expenditures.

The BFA is reguired to establish a Debt Reserve Fund. Each regional district through its member municipalities
whio share in the proceeds of a debt issue is required to pay into the Debt Reserve Fund certaim amounts set out
im the debt agreements. The MFA pays into the Debt Reserve Fund these monies from which interest eamed
therson less administrative expenses becomes an obligation to the regional districts.

It must then use this fund, if at any time there are insufficient funds, to mest payments on its cbligations. When
this occurs, the regional districts may be called upon to restore the fund. The loan agreements with the ACRD and
the MFA provide that, if at any time the scheduled payments provided for in the agreements are not sufficient to
meest the MFA's obligations in respect to such borrowings, the resuling deficiency becomes a liability of the City.

A= a condition of the loan agreements, the City is abligated to provide securty by way of demand notes and
interest- bearing cash deposits (sinking fund balances) based on the amount of the debt. if the debt is repaid
withowt default, the deposits are refunded to the City. The demand notes are held by the MFA and upon maturity
of the debt, the demand notes are released. As of December 31, 2024, there are contingent demand notes of
F430,810 ( 2023 - $430,810) that are not recorded in the City's financial statements.

Long-termn Debt
All debenture debt is cwed to the MFA and is reported at gross amount. The City has no debt assumed by others

on its behalf and has assumed no debt for others. MFA Debenture debt by Bylaw is detailed on Schedule 3.
Principal payments on long-term debt as of December 31, 2024, for the next 5§ years are as follows:

L::-nE Term Debt

25 526,214
2R 26.214
NIT 526,214
Hiza 526,214
025 526,214
Total § 2,631,070

Secheduled long-term debt repayments may be suspended in the event of excess sinking fund eamings
within the MFA. Principal paid during the year was 3526.214 | 2023 - 5364,240). Total interest expense
during the year was $729.507 | 2023 - $553,132). Included in revenue is 3149424 | 2023 - 5132, 288) of
actuarial adjustments on the Ciy's annual debt principal repayments invested by MFA. This annual
investment income resulis in a reduction in the cwverall cost of bomowing.
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CITY OF PORT ALBERNI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

12. Asset Retirement Obligations

The City owns and operates tangible capital asssts that are known to have asbestos and lead paint, which represent a
health hazard upon demolition or rencwation of the assets. There is a legal obligation fo remove and dispose of the
hazardous materals. The City is also obligated under the Environmental Management Act to decommission and
restore waste water lagoons. Following the adoption of Public Accounting Standard PS5 3280 Asset Retirement
Cibligations, the City recognized an obligation relating to the removal of the hazardous materials in assets and
decommissioning and restoration of waste water lagoons as estimated at January 1. 2023. The transition and
recognition of asset retirement obligations invalved an accompanying increase to the buildings and wasie water
infrastructure tangible capital assets. The increase in tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over
the remaining expected useful life of the related assets.

Estimated costs totaling $21.501,812 have been discounted using a present value caleulation with & discount rate of
3.7T%. The timing of these expenditures is estimatad to occur between 2025 and 2053 with the regular replacemsent,
renowation, or disposal of assets. Mo recoveries are expecied at this time.

2024 2023
Crpening Asset Retiremient Obligation $ 42617953 % -
Intitial Recognition of Expected Discounted Cashflows - 44,097 936
Increase due to accretion 592 061 1,520,017
Disposal of Assets {143 566) -
Decrease due to Revision of Estimates - Sewer Lagoons (22 258 440) -
CI-:-EinE Asset Retirerment DinEalj-:-n $§ 20,802,008 § 42,617,953

13. Trust Funds

The City operates a cemetery and maintains a cemetery perpetual care fund in accordance with the Cremation,
Intermment and Funeral Services Act. The trust fund assets and liabilities are not included in the consolidated
financial statements. As at December 31, 2024, the balance of funds held in trust was $183.228 (2023 - $153,015).

14. Municipal Pension Plan

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension plan). The
board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the plan,
including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is & multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2023, the plan has
about 256,000 active members and approximately 128,000 retired members. Active members include
approcimately 45,000 contributors from local governments.
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

14. Municipal Pension Plan (continued)

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and adequacy of plan
funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the plan.
The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age nomal cost method, which produces the long-term
rate of member and employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This
rate may be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of
any unfunded actuarial liability.

The most recent valuation for the Munizipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated a $3.781 million funding
surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concem basis.

The City of Port Albemi paid §1.533,232 (2023 - $1,4058,041) for employer contributions while employees contributed
51,581,330 (2023 - 51,228 428) to the plan in fiscal 2024.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2024, with resulis available in 2025,

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made during
the fiscal year (defined confribufion pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records accrued liabilities and
accrued assels for the plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation,
asseis and cost to individual employers participating in the plamn.

15. Tangible capital assets

Tangible Capital Assets are stated at their net book value.

2024 2023
Land § 10133430 § 10282006
Land mprovements 11,286,453 4,184,702
Buildings 24 230036 18,182,201
Machinery and equipment 9,465,365 7.032,128
Engineering structmres 2,836 622 2 BOT. 147
Storm Draims 17,049,079 18,551.437
Transportation 8,096 122 3,084,425
Wate 235,094,943 25585483
Sews 71,857,659 0a,002.306
Leased asset 68 889 G4.880

180138646 133,801,804

Work-in-pro ress: Assefs under construction not bein
amortized 5,044,901 11,855 487

§ 185183547 § 20074720

For more information on additicns, disposals, and amortization, refer to Schedule of Tangible Capital Asseis
(Schedule 1). No Interest was capitalized im 2024 or the prior year (2023). No amontization has besn
recorded on work in pregress assets not in use in 2024,




CITY OF PORT ALEERNI

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

16. Accumulated surplus

Accumulated surplus consists of individwal fund surplus and reserve funds as follows:

2024 2023
Operations
General 3 B 412277 % 9,456,863
Watar (565, 160) 224 038
Sewer (13,723,553 /8,735,370
3 {5.876,436) 3 055,532
Capital
General 23,752,164 20,768,750
Viater 3,404 580 3,352 967
Sewar (28,787 578} (30,523 43D)
ii_IEEEI.MAI :EIE-]EI'-'22|
Equity In tanglbls capltal asasts
General 3 E2917,B46 % 74,334 395E
Viater 24 013,677 23,908,241
Sewer 37,118,552 38,832,817
% 144055875 F 137,126,046
Rasardss
Ragaree funds — atatutory
Parkland acquisition % 362,757 § 314 284
Land Sale 1,514,743 Eai 722
1,877, 500 1,306,006
Rasares funds — restricted
Equipment replacement 5,157,800 6,622 565
Carton fund 878,478 528,210
Parks and recreation capital 825,110 2650915
Capital works 55,673 289,505
Community Buliding Fund Resarve (Mote 3) 3,882,888 3,237,726
Srowing Communities Fund 4.0e0,617 5,396,336
Agquatic Centre Resanie Fund E1,588 61,6586
Alb=m| Valley Community Forest Corporation reserss 1,051,441 BOE.152
151]4-3.?53 19,714 407
Ragards funds — unrestricted
General Tund - profect and purchases 2,433,380 2357710
Assel Management Resare 240,751 -
Museum purchases E4.TT7 61,631
RCMP - contract surplus 1,06£ 418 1,040,231
MoLean Ml projeci 37,780 334,300
Water fund - projects and purchases 7,413,801 5402014
Sewer fund - projecis and purchasas E.TED. 240 6,345,509
18,050,235 15,545,695

18
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

16. Accumulated surplus [continued)

2024 2023

Tt rasan'ss 33,971,528 36,556,108

§ 172538134 §  157.E2E964

a) Growing Communities Fund

Thie Province of British Columbia distributed conditional GCF grants to communities at the end of March 2023
to help local govermments build community infrastructure and amenities to meet the demands of population
growth. The GCF provided a cne-time total of 31 bilion in gramts to all 161 municipalities and 27 regional
districts in British Columbia.

The City of Port Alberni received 55,268,000 of GCF funding in March 2023 In 2024 51,581,339 of grant
proceeds were spent, in 2023 no funds were spent.

2024 2023
Growing Communities opening balance $ 5396338 %
Funds received - 5,289,000
Interest Eamed 245,618 127,338
Eligibls expenses (1.581.339)
Closi L] balance of unspent funds 4 4060617 § 5306333
17. Grants and Transfers
2024 2023
Oparating Grants
Federal $ - 5 83,290
Provinca 1,896,547 1,662 358
Taotal Govermmani IIIEEEI'.I"IEI Gus- 1,856 547 1,'-'-1-E|-5?El
Loeal 796,340 10,500
Capital
Federal 4,032,991 10,891,508
Federal'Prowingal 326420 1,690,000
4413 411 12 551,508
Total Govermment Grants and Translars EE12,858 14,337 666
Diher Grants - Non Sovemmental 456254 8.530
Total Grants and Transfars 3 TOE3153 3§ 14,346 216




CITY OF PORT ALEBERNI
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMEMNTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

18. Commitments and Contingencies

a.) Regional District Debt
Drebt issued by the Regional District of Albemi Clayoguot is a direct joint and several ability of the
District and each member municipality including the City.

b) Claims for damages

In the nomnal course of a year, the City is faced with lawsuits and other claims for damages of a diverse
nature. At year end, the City's estimated exposure for such liabilities is not considered to be significant. The
City camied general liability insurance with a private insurance carrier in the amount of 35 millicn, plus an
umbrella policy in the amount of 345 million. When claims are paid the expense is charge to the General
Govermment expense category.

c) Commitments

The City entered into a long-term contract with the Royal Canadian Mounted Police for the provision of police
services effective April 1, 2012, Under the terms of this contract, the City is responsible for 80% of policing
costs. The 2025 estimated cost of this contract is 37,988,738 (2026 - $8,310.585).

15%. Budget

The budget data presented in these consolidated fimancial statements includes both operating and capital
budgets. The City of Port Alberni budget was approved by Council on Aprl 08, 2024, with the adoption of the
Five-Year Financial Plan (2024-2028) Bylaw Mo 50897, 2024. The chart below reconciles the approved budget
per the Financial Plan to the budget reported in these consolidated financial statements.

2024 Budget

Consolidated Budgeted Surplus, per City of Port Albemi Financial Plan Bylaw No. 5075 : ]
Add

Acquisition of TCA 5,470 289

Contingency 275,000

Dbt repayments (383.788)
Less

Transfers to reserves 4,080.864
Consolidated Bud Surplus City of Port Albemni Statement of Operations £ 4300613
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CITY OF PORT ALEBERNI
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

20. Segmented information

The City of Port Albemi provides a wide range of services to its citizens including police, fire, recreation,
roads, sewer and water. For reporting purposes, the City's operations and activities are ocrganized and
reported by Fumd as described in Mote 1. Funds were created for the purpose of recording specific activities to
attain certain chjectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.

City services are provided by departments and their activities are reporied in these funds. Certain
departments that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information, along with the serdices they
provide are as fiollows:

General govermment services

General govemnment provides internal support services to Council and other departments who provide direct
services to its citizens. General government consists of governance, corporate management and program
support. Imtemal departments include Legislative (Council). Chief Administrator's Office, Corporate Senvices
Diepariment, Financial Services, Information Technology, and Human Resources,

Frotective services - Police, Fire, and Building Inspection

The Royal Canadiam Mounied Police is Canada's nafional police service. They are commitied to presending
the peace, upholding the law and providing quality service in partnership with Canadian communities and for
all Canadian citizens. The mandate of the Port Albemi Fire Department is to provide fire suppression senvices,
fire prevention programs; training and education related fo prevention, detection or extinguishment of fires. It
is the mandate of the Building Inspection Depariment to provide building inspection services as set out in the
building bylaw for residents and builders. Building inspection services are provided in order fo assist residents
and builders im constructing projects which meet minimum construction standards.

Transportation services

The Public Works Department is responsible for the delivery of municipal public works services related to the
planning. development and maintenance of rcadway systems, traffic control and street lighting.

Environmental health services

The fumction of envirommental healtth services is to provide for the collection and disposal of solid waste as well as
providing cemetery services to the citizens of Port Albemi.

Environmental and economic development

Environmental development provides senvices relating to planning, economic development and toursm. The
Planning Department develops and administers land use regulations to ensure an ordery and well-planned
community. Economic Development includes responsibilities for diversification of the economy through business
retention, business attraction and marketing key properties cwned by the City.
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CITY OF PORT ALBERMNI
HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

20. Segmented information (continued)

Recreation and culfural services

The mission of the Parks, Recreation and Heritage Depariment is to enrich the quality of life of residents and
visitors. The parks, facilites, programs and services are designed and delivered to provide the greatest benefit
to the community as a whole. The Mussum Department works with the community to collect, document,
preserve and present all aspects of the cultural hentage of the Alberni Valley and West Coast of Vancouwver
Island. Cultural services also contribute towards the imformation needs of citizens through the provision of
library services in partnership with the Vancouver Island Regional Library.

Water uiility

The Water Depariment provides for the supply and treatment of safe drinking water to the citizens of Port
Albermni.

Sewer utility

The Sewer Department provides for the collection and treatment of wastewater. The accounting policies used
in these segments are consistent with those followed im preparation of the consalidated fimnancial statements
as disclosed in (Mote 1). For additional information see Segmented Information (Schedule 2).
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CITY OF PORT ALBERNI
SCHEDULE 1: TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
As at December 31, 2024

ASEETS ACCUMULATED AMORTEZATION
Balance Balanca Batanca Balance NET BOOK HET BOOK
Decambar 31, Additions Disposals Decomibaar 31, December 31,  Additions Disposals December 31, WALUE WALUE
2023 2024 2024 2024 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2023

Land 3 10282997 3 3 {149,586} 3 10133430 3 3 3 3 $ 1013343 3 10282998
Land knpmvemanis 13,139,188 7AR2.900 20622 088 8,944 486 11,103 9,335,589 11,286 493 4,194,702
Buidings 41,13331 7233072 {17,501} £3.348 AR 22 940,721 1,188,625 10,501 24,118 845 24250 036 18,192,201
Machinary & Equinmant 18,534,147 1615714 (687,053 21 462 A0A 11,502,017 AFEATE {381,054} 11,997 442 9465 368 732129
Enginesmd Stuciuras 4,271,879 4271879 1,374,732 40525 1415257 2856622 2 897 147
Sharm Dvains 28,295811 A73,783 {8,554} 27 160,040 9,744 374 72702 {8,114} 10,110,962 17,043,078 16,551,437
Tanspadatan 48,292 730 655,184 {287} &5 947 BET 38,208,365 BEI4AT {287} 38,851,565 8096122 8,084,425
Watar 44,857 250 303 463 {158, 269] £5.002 444 19,271,769 74001 {158, 289) 19,907,500 25094 945 25,585,481
Sawear 113,388,759 238 287 21,810,075} 2,016,941 17,386,363 4672105 {1,839, 188) 20,159 282 71,857 653 95,002,387
Loasa Assels 1,425,000 1,425,000 1,355,111 1.358.111 68,883 68,889
Wark in grogress 11,855.488 5044901 {11,855, £86] 5044901 5044 30 11,855,487

3 331476616 3 250447274 3 (34, 487.791) § 322 436,099 3130728938 3 8979023 3 (2434409 § 137252553 $ 185,183,548 3 200,747,291

23
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
SCHEDULE 2: SEGMENTED IMFORMATION
For e Yoar Ended Decombar 31, 2024

Seversl Ersiroressat
FweTiTaTL Froscte Taasporadon  Bavicomentl  and sonomic  Recreaton and Coiod et D gt Sl et
[res=n [Hexer YRR asr Rl Cotarm eirvicss  Vaster uElry S ity Ot =] Jloms. 22} =)
Revenues
Tamation §30°36,748 ¥ - % - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - - ¥ - $30,836,748 §121807% § 27873562
Sale of senvices 73,173 EBoE0S 358,582 1,802,856 734,085 1,530,055 3,995405 3,400,501 1,480,495 44,34c5e8 12107858 13,885,834
Cfeer revenue from own Sources T3, 18T TE2, 181 - 19,112 233,649 - £8278 39,110 143,424 1,960,921 1,552 005 1,261,637
Investment Rcome 1,006,531 - 12,094 - - - 228,731 250,351 418,213 1,915,921 TA0,000 1,782,055
Grants and ransfers 5,587,740 - 71,400 - T42,504 165,255 - - 402,253 7,068,153 1545447 14,348,216
Recognition of developer conrbutions - - - - - - - - BB2,71 EB2,T1 - -
Eain foss) on disposal of tangibie capital assets - - - - - - - - 2247610 2,247,610 - 96,709
Loss fromi investment in government business (170,243} - - - - - - - - (170,242} - 36,615
Todsl Revenuss 3= 3T AT 1,371,967 442076 1,821,568 1,700.248 2085310 4269415 3,689,962 5360711 SB.988, 795 47274385 55,020,351
Expencac
Salaries, wages and benefiis 3,233,353 T ATTEE4 2,859,834 427,501 950,467 5,524,321 9TZAZE 438,858 - ZN,BBED46 I1,TE2E50 15,508,602
Cebt Senvicng 685,543 Wy - - - 23,746 = L - 877,271 (185.512) BET, 256
RCMP Contract - T iEIEe - - - - - - - 7,118,282 T7IETAOT 7,035,396
Grants 10,000 - - - 383,314 100,57 - - - 454,286 173,500 333,358
e Conlracts £9,869 - 1126317 - 13,913 - - - 4,118 1,204,247 1430,16E 1,213,073
Gocads and services 1,704,368 1731458 1536665 1,138,713 60,17 2,541,408 957027 1,706,481 14,138 13327433 1247351 11537258
£)074,533 16,211,411 522,816 1,556,614 1,957,872 8,550,447 1,974305 2,800,233 18,253 44,7TDE,545 42, 71 40,800,556
Amaortization 381518 1,564,142 2,183 68,289 1,245,450 TaA O 4,672,105 - - 5,083,857
Accretion [132,567) TEEE 14 - 443 £3,403 34 662,316 - 582,062 - 1,520,047
Todal sxpancss 5,212,901 16,580,784 8,087,385 1,558,797 2,028,603 9,888,300 2,769,231 8,138,712 8,254 S43277.639 4234773 51,403,571
33 004,334 §{15,202 816) §7,645509) § 263,171 ¥ (326,356) § (7,792,550) ¥ 1,500,124 2) $5,343.458 § § 43095613 § 7,616,820

Annual curpluc [deflolt)




CITY OF PORT ALBERNI
SCHEDULE 2. SEQMENTED INFORMATICN
Faor e Yoar Ended Docomisr 31, 2024

G Erairorasan i ane
povamrET Trau prmeer Eraironmerod f—— Recraatcs 5l Cotmsiinme Dadgst ol ica s
b Proas Dve Bard Cel A TS bl ey P ST Y Lo b’ X ] e
Revenuses
Tamation ¥ - § - % - § - § - % - § - 278 § 2E7TI20T0 § 25,501,585
Sale of services 374,418 415,227 1748551 874,533 1571980 4,150,373 32871 1007237 13,888,841 11217673 12702238
Offer revenuE fOm OeN Souroes 344,647 - 16,729 163,230 - 38,089 EE2 132,296 1,261,637 1,456,057 1325297
Investment income - 7,018 - - - X869 231,387 37,281 1,7E20S 450,000 £23 056
Grants and ranshers - 8,530 - 263,489 1,029,995 - 1,580,000 10,000 14,346,216 6053314 3,989,808
Lozz on disposal of ngibie capkal szsebs - - - - - - - - (38,709 56,705 - 21882
Lioss] imcome from Investment i gosemment
¥ - - - - [36,615) - - - - [36,6185) - 1,840,840
Total REvenues 40,829,741 719,068 430,775 1,785,380 1,265,037 3001575 4,397,158 5231153 1,380,005 SS020,351  £BQOT.114 45,151,182
Expencac
Zalaries, wages and benefits 402 563 853,828 4.5TST4T 447,70 - 19,763,554  17,187.575
Debt Senvicing - - - 21372 544,035 - 1,300,057 21T 453
RICMP Contract - 7.035,356 - - - - - - - 5730000 6043880
Grants - 5,833 - - 253,163 74352 - - - X3 500 539512
Offer Contracts 98,885 - 1,078,530 - 35,654 - - - - 1,213,073 2,254 505 1220073
Gonals AN SErviCEs 1,505,717 999,459 2,589,875 3 95T 350,162 ZE45137 1,231,547 1442364 - 11,337,258 3,840,015 116592365
14,710,421 5,404,153 1,335,520 1,532,807 TSIEE18 2,056,164 2431100 - 40BO0SSE 39411990 35901361
Amorttzaton 287,453 355,528 1,607,151 z183 56,551 1200502 TEGEDE 4,786,202 - 9,082,956 - 5615586
Arcretion 1,343 7.ETE e - 427 IoE3E 54y 1,438,188 - 4,530,047 - -
Total expances 4,722,610 15,073,926 8,012,334 1,337,703 1,589,825 9167954 2843718 865550 - E1403571 39411990 42,516,845

Annual surpius [defiolt) § 0706 0§ 14354880 § (75815600 F 42TETT § 288,173) §

(B,165.575) § 1,553,440

F3 4243471 § 1380105 § TEIEEI § 8615134 § 3544337
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CITY OF PORT ALBERNI
SCHEDULE 3: DEBT
As at December 31, 2024

Debt

Debt Reserve

Reserve Debt Cash

Annual Balance Cash Reserve  Balance

Termin Interest Maturity Balance Principal  Actuarial Dec 31, Dec 31, Income & Dec 31,

Security Issuing Bylaw Purpose Years Rate Date Original Issue Dec 31, 2023 Paid Recognized 2024 2023 Expenses 2024
4575 General 25 153% 19-Apr-31 § 3375064 § 1454572 § 81042 § 76,820 $ 1,296,710 § 56938 5 1983 § 58,921
4807 General 30 3.00% 14-Oct-44 428,300 135,408 7,638 3,233 124,537 5,461 185 5,646
4846 General 20 220% 08-Apr-35 912,000 620,091 32,249 10,217 577,625 10,970 388 11,358
4,715,364 2,210,071 120,929 90,270 1,998,872 73,369 2,556 75,925
4848 Water 30 220% 08-Apr-45 2,000,000 1,649,314 38,743 12,274 1,598,297 24,442 351 25,293
4807 Waste Water 30 3.00% 14-Oct-44 5,321,700 4,529,610 94 885 40,166 4,394,559 65,905 2,294 68,199
4939 Waste Water 30 1.99% 09-Apr-50 4,450,000 4114298 109,692 6,714 3,997,892 48,400 1,685 50,085
5038 Waste Water 30 4.15% 05-Jun-53 8,500,000 8,500,000 161,965 - 8,338,035 86,646 3,017 89,663
18,271,700 17,143,908 366,542 46,880 16,730,486 200951 6,996 207,947

5 24987064 § 21,003,293 § 526214 §

149,424 $20,327,655 $298,761 §

10,403 § 309,165
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI
SCHEDULE 4: TAX LEVIES AND GRANTS IN LIEL OF TAXES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

84

Budget 2024 2023
(Mote 20)
Tax Levies
General Pupose % 30150672 % 2983273 § 26745407
Off-Street Parking 18.540 18,340 13,000
| Millity B18,813 Ta7 08T B52 B34
30,884,325 30,648 300 27818241
Grants in lisu of taxes 231,750 289 84T 257,721
Total Municipal Taxes 31,218,075 30,936,748 27,873,062
Collections For Other Governments
School Dismicts ¥.075.000 7342972 T.017.775
Albemi Clayoquot Regional Hospital District 679,233 E79.292 ga2 652
Albemi Clayoquot Regional District 1,807,180 1,853,059 1,770,580
B.C. Assessment 220,000 215,800 214 261
Vancouver Island Regional Library 1.072.702 1.072. 702 B13.661
Municipal Finance Authomty 1.200 1,067
10,855 334 11,165,032 10,593,629
Total Taxes Collected 3 42073400 % 42104779 % 3B472.801
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI

SCHEDULE 5: GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 21, 2024
{UNALIDITED)

Budget 2024 2023
(Mote 20)
Legislative 5 323,565 % 395,572 5 303,883
Chief Administration Officer 338,084 287,267 253,805
Municipal clerk's office 812,438 T53, 666 582,083
Legal fees 25,000 49 224 22,798
Financial managemsnt 1.112,184 1,159,067 1,011,852
Administration vehicle 12,838 20,749 17,204
External audit 32,860 32,363 30,500
Furchasing 134,015 138,553 142,833
Buildimgs 143,017 295 5949 255,884
Information services 968,488 1,007,805 TE4T2T
Appraisals - - 3,681
Fersonne| 453,780 480,685 367,018
Training and development 267,212 215,659 222 854
Damage claims 21,000 20,028 4,888
Grants and grant funded programs 11,000 10,000 -
Office equipment supplies and printing a71,.482 408,216 574,728
Public liability insurance 404,842 414 410 371,128
Oither general services 1,187 866 3] &7
Administration recoveries (530,000 |554,004) (527,004)
Reconciliation Committee - 3,623 -
Ass=t Management Flan - - 18,878
Drebt senvicing 58,200 69 546 52,304
Total $§ 6455461 % 5212901 5 4722610
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CITY OF PORT ALBEERNI

SCHEDULE &: PROTECTIVE SERVICES EXFENSES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024
{UNALUDITED)

Budget 2024 2023
(Mote 20)
Folice protection § 9po002828 $ 9712457 § 9,510,852
Fire protection 4,827,053 5,467,083 4 578,843
Emergency measures G401 15,684 7,134
Building and plumbing inspections 2BE.876 304,074 248,745
Amnimal pound operations 153,763 169,677 137,778
Bylaw enforcement 486,215 828 331 a4 697
Dbt servicing B3, 77T 83,77T 8377y
Taotal 5 14858714 % 16580784 5 15,073,926
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CITY OF PORT ALEBERNI

SCHEDULE 7: TRANSPORTATION SERVICES EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024
{UNALIDITED)

Budget 2024 2023
(Hote 20}
Common Services
Engineering administraticn 841,031 % Toe,184 5 TGO, 357
Engineenng consulting services 172,045 215,771 11,3448
Fublic works supervision 300,448 428 091 h34,152
Equiprment and supplies £5,303 1289, 468 118,497
Building and yard maintenance 405,411 264 310 263,878
Equipment maintenance 821,458 1,291,245 1,272,217
2,775,686 3,395,070 3,458 450
Road and 5treet Maintenance
Roadway surfaces maintenance 1441127 1,908,015 1,828,808
Snow and ice remowval 211,761 182,011 194 T37
Farking 17,846 19,036 14,055
Gravel 119,708 7,384 130,062
Bridges and retaining walls 26,881 48 707 47,538
Street lighting 408,758 526,572 487,138
Traffic control 282 245 289, 794 297 878
2,518,216 3,051,523 2,878,317
Other
Ditch and dyke maintenance 108,312 116,272 125,628
Storm sewers 305,024 TO8E,303 §52,060
FPublic transit 1,119,137 1,126,072 1,078,188
Oither 170,240 124 83T 183,535
Recoveries (489, 000) (434,092) (483,554)
1,203,713 1,641,392 1,575 567
6407624 $ 8,087,985 5 2,012,334

30

87



88

CITY OF PORT ALEERMNI
SCHEDULE 8: RECREATION AND CULTURAL SERVICES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

(UNAUDITED)
2024 2023
Budget Actual Actual
Budget Actual Budget Actual Operating Operating Operating
Revenue Revenue Expense Expense Deficit Dreficit Deficit
Recreation Services
Administration 3 - % -3 G03.077 $ B21,214 § (603,077) % (821,214) 3 (615.537)
Leisure Centre 253,838 285 293 485,011 689,759 (211.175) (400, 460) (430.184)
Swimming pool 235,500 223,073 512,687 632,005 (277.187) (408,926) (352.533)
Arena §81,100 826,003 1,250,022 2,104 411 (577.822) (1,278,408) (1,146,027)
Parks, Playgrounds, and other 18,500 17,670 2,286,880 2 560,720 (2,267 ,380) (2,543,050) (2,373.811)
Programs 371,180 502,400 1,822 487 2,054,870 (1,561,307) (1,552 4T0) {1.426,572)
1,561,118 1,858 451 T.048. 184 8,862 379 (5.488.048) (7,004, 528) (8,244 544)
Cultural Services
Museum senvices 42 800 Al 220 587,129 721,361 (554,328) (681,141) (571.288)
McLeam Mill - 31,386 204,015 303,959 (204,015) (272,5T73) (280.240)
42,800 71,606 501,144 1,025,320 (758,344) (953,714) (851.817)
% 15039018 § 1,930,055 3 7850300 § 988300 5 (5.246393)% (7,958,246)3F (7,186.281)
|



CITY OF PORT ALBERMNI

SCHEDULE 3: SALES OF SERVICES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024
{UNALIDITED)

General Revenue
General services

Arena

Leisure Center

Farks, playgrounds and other
Swimming Pool

Programs

Musewum

beclean Mill

Miscellaneous Revenue

Services Provided to Other Governments

Water Revenue
Sale of water

Connections and sundry charges

Sewer Revenue
Sale of sewer services

Connections and sundry charges

Budget 2024 2023
(Mote 20)

¥ 30250804 $ 34868242 3 3,399.485

881,100 826,003 B58.618
253, 836 305,865 272,085
19,500 17,670 15,080
235,500 223073 233,801
371,180 502,400 514,698
35,800 40,220 48,160

- 31,386 20,800
4,822,520 5,414,862 5372617
- 1,460,495 1,007,237

70,000 73,703 72508
3,851,806 3,991,049 4,010,228
111,500 5,357 140,144

3,563,306 3,996,408 4,150,373

3,230,738 3,242 552 3,167,634
221,203 157,949 119,470

3.451.842 3,400,501 3,287,104

F 12,107.858 % 14345368 35 13,839,841
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CITY OF PORT ALEERNI

SCHEDULE 10: OTHER REVENUE FROM OWHMN SOURCES
For the Year Ended December 21, 2024

{UNALDNTED)
Budget 2024 2023
{Mote 20}
Licenses and permits ] 604,135 % AT6.609 3 333327
Fines and costs 151,000 403,532 11.321
Land and building rentals 180223 X231 649 183,230
Penalties and interest 481,105 4935 209 IFaTT
Miscellansous revenue 274772 3o ATH 241 GB3
Other revenue from own sources - Capital Fund - 149 424 132,208
§ 1602005 % 1980921 3 1,281,637
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CITY OF PORT ALEERMNI

SCHEDULE 11: SEWER AND WATER UTILITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

{UNALIDITED)
Budpget 2024 273
[Mots 20]
Wiater LMty
Adminisiration T G56,366 § 1,042,552 § 901 458
Service of supply 106,596 3F2.13 368,163
Pumging 271,366 3E2.517 330,376
Transmission and distibutlon E11,T1E 1,027,121 1,197,971
Debt sarvicing - 44 851 24,737
§ 2145460 § 2759293 F 2,B43TIE
Sawer Uty
Administration oS4, B4E 1183, TET 1,012,595
Sewage treaiment and dsposal 271,244 5,502,453 6,087,341
Sewage collection system 307,026 503,878 728,735
Sewage pumnp statlons 305,642 283,662 284,332
Other 1,000 - -
Diebt sarvicing - B54,954 541,035
§ 1523760 § 6134714 5 5,555501
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PERMISSIVE TAX
EXEMPTIONS

Under the provisions of Section 224 of the Community Charter, Council may, on or before October 31, exempt
land and/or improvements from municipal property taxes for the next calendar year, subject to meeting
certain requirements which in general, restrict exemption to non-profit organizations using the lands for
specific non-profit purposes.

The Community Charter also provides for statutory (automatic) tax exemptions for a range of properties
held or used by governments and public agencies, including places for public worship. These exemptions
do not require Council authorization.

In 2023, Property Taxes foregone through Permissive Tax Exemptions equaled $298,744.60

REGISTERED OWNER EXEMPTION

CHARITABLE OR NOT FOR PROFIT

SAGE Haven Society (two properties ) $7,298.1
Alberni Drug & Alcohol Society (ADAPS) $1,241.04
Kuu-us Crisis Line Society $4,553.06
Alberni Valley Alnon Club $644.87
Alberni Valley Childcare Society (three properties) $19,215.17
Alberni Valley Rescue Squad $10,443.73
Bread of Life Centre $3,601.05
Canadian Mental Health Association, Port Alberni Branch (seven properties) $29,424.32
Port Alberni Association for Community Living (six properties) $18,908.79
Hupacasath First Nation (Ooh-Ah-Tluk-Kuu-Wil Society) $7,099.02
Port Alberni Maritime Heritage Society (two properties) $11,287.36
Island Corridor Foundation $13,668.79
Somass War Memorial Building Society (Royal Canadian Legion Branch 293) $1,181.55
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CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

REGISTERED OWNER EXEMPTION

ATHLETIC OR RECREATIONAL PROGRAMS YOUTH/SENIORS

Alberni Athletic Association $24,427.47
Port Alberni Black Sheep Rugby Club $12,767.63
Port Alberni Gymnastics Association $16,099.61
Port Alberni Lawn Bowling Club $2,265.07
Alberni District Fall Fair (two properties) $9,492.11
Alberni Valley Curling Club $7,920.96
Alberni Valley Junior Baseball Association $193.05
Alberni Valley Minor Hockey Association $520.83
Alberni Valley Minor Softball $678.16
Alberni Valley Youth Soccer Association $2,488.86
Community Arts Council of the Alberni Valley $3,620.04
Echo Sunshine Club $158.69
Mount Arrowsmith Skating Club $480.14
Tsunami Swim Club $287.54
Western Vancouver Island Industrial Heritage Society $12,505.34
BC SPCA $34,966.14
Central Park - ‘Gaiga Square’ $3,892.66
Uchucklesaht Capital Assets Inc. $2,292.19



REGISTERED OWNER EXEMPTION

Alberni Valley Christian Reformed Church $1,081.90
Alberni Valley Gurdwara Society $699.44
Alberni Valley United Church $2.085.39
Arrowsmith Baptist Church $3,641.92
BC Association of Seventh Day Adventist Church $1,587.26
BC Conference of the Mennonite Bretheren Church (Gateway Community Church) $1,442.38
Holy Family and Notre Dame Church Joint Parishes $1,142.53
Church of the Nazarene (Canada Pacific District) Southside Community Church $306.27
Glenwood Gospel Hall $1,257.28
Grace Lutheran Church $1,032.43
Horn of Oil Ministries $1,642.78
Jericho Road Church $609.43
Khalsa Diwan Society - Guru Nanak Sikh Temple $1,075.44
Lathom Road Gospel Hall $828.14
Pentecostal Assemblies of Canada (Elim Tabernacle) $875.80
Sri Sanatan Dharam Society $648.05
Trinity Anglican Lutheran Church $1,008.41
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CITY OF PORT ALBERNI

REGISTERED OWNER EXEMPTION

HOSPITAL/COMMUNITY CARE FACILITY/SENIORS

Alberni-Clayoquot Continuing Care Society $6,275.73
Alberni-Clayoquot Continuing Care Society (Echo Village) $3,491.71
Alberni Valley Senior Citizens' Homes (Pioneer Towers) $1,209.61
Alberni-Clayoquot Continuing Care Society (Fir Park Village) $1,628.92
Alberni Valley Hospice Society (two properties) $8,937.80

TOTAL EXEMPTIONS $306,432.08
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